m( S K Parvodia & AssociaTes
A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To the Members of Vakrangee Limited,

Report on the Consolidated Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Financial Statements

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Vakrangee Limited,
the parent (heretnafter referred o as ‘the Holding Company’) and its wholly owned
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as ‘the ‘Group’), which comprise of the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2017, the Consolidated Stalement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, prepared based on the relevant records (hercinafler
referred to as the “Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements™),

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

2. The Holding Company’s Board of Dircctors are responsible for the preparation of thesc
consolidated Ind AS financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companics Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair vicw of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consolidated cash flows and changes in equity of the Group in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
specified in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) under
Section 133 of the Act. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is also responsible for
ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenancc of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequatc internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have becn used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of thc Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditors’ Responsibility
3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated Ind AS financial statements
based on our audit. While conducting the audit, we have taken into account the provisions of

the Act and the rules made thereunder including the accounting and auditing standards and
matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act

and the Rules made thereunder.
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4.

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with
the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act and other applicable
authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and pronouncements require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. [n making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the Holding
Company’s preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriatencss of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Holding Company’s Board of
Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated Ind AS (inancial
statements.

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

Opinion

7. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according o the explanations given to us,

the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generatly accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at
March 31, 2017, their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), their
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Other Matters

8.

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of one subsidiary, whose
financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 6,708.14 lakhs as at March 31, 2017, total
revenues of Rs. 619.65 lakhs, total profit/ (loss) after tax of Rs. (0.25) lakhs and net cash
flows/ (used) amounting to Rs. (1.31) lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in
the consolidated Ind AS financial slatements. These financial statements / financial
information are unaudited and have been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion
on the consolidated Ind AS financial stalements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and
disclosures included in respect of this subsidiary, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on such
unaudited financial statements / financial information. In our opinion and according to the
information and explanations given to us by the Management, this financial statements /
financial information are not material to the Group. ;
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9. Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matiers with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the financial statements / financial information
certified by the Management.

10. The financial information of the Group for the year ended March 31, 2016 and the transition
date opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2015 included in these consolidated Ind AS financial
stalements, are based on the previously issued statutory financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2016 and March 31, 2015 prepared in accordance with the Companies {(Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) which were audited by us, on which we expressed an
unmodified opinion dated May 11, 2016 and May 30, 2015, respectively. The adjustments to
those financial statements for the differences in accounting principles adopted by the Company
on transition to the Ind AS have been audited by us. Qur opinion is not qualified in respect of
this matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
11. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report to the extent applicable, that;

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were neccssary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as il appears
from our examination of those books.

{c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss {including
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the
Consolidated statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements

{(d) in our opinion, the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

{e) On the basis of the writien representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2017 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the
Group companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2017 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

(f) With respect to adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Reporl in

Annexure A,
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(g) With respect 1o the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

(i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations as at March 31, 2017 on the consolidated financial position of the Group —
Refer Note No. 41 to the consolidated financial statements;

(ii) The Group does not have long-term contracts, including derivative contracts, as at
March 31,2017;

(iii) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, during the year
ended March 31, 2017 and there were no amounts which were required to be
transferred by the subsidiary companies.

(iv) The Group has provided requisite disclosures in its consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as to holdings as well as dealings in Specified Bank Notes during the
period from November 8§, 2016 to December 30, 2016 and these are in accordance
with the books of accounts maintained by the Group - Refer Note No. 43.

For §. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 112723W
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Place : Mumbai Partner R 4_’;,
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership No. : 134572



Annexure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Audilors’ Report of even date to the members of Vakrangee
Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31,2017,

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Scction 143 of
the Act

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and
for the year ended March 31, 2017, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Vakrangee Limited (hereinafter referred as “the Holding Company™) and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2.

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation, and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls which were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to ¢xpress an opinion on the Group’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Notc on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
issucd by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAT) and the Standards on Auditing
deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the cxtent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls and both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was c¢stablished and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

QOur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial control system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included operating and
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exist, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risk of material misstatement of the financial
statement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.
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Anncxure A to Independent Auditors’ Report
Referred to in paragraph 11(f) of the Independent Audilors’ Report of even date 1o the members of Vakrangee
Limited on the consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2017.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

6. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that :

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurate and fairly reflect
the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the company;

it. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary (o permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iii. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

[nherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future period are subject
to the risk that the internal financial controls over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of the changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the holding company, its subsidiary companies, which are companies
incorporated in India, have, in all material respect, and adequate internal financial control
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2017, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India as it appears from our
examination of the books and records of the Holding Company and the representation received
from the management for the entities unaudited.

For S. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W
O ot~ )
vé'{ly,
Arun Poddar

Place : Mumbai Partner Rl - AR W
Date : May 30, 2017 Membership No. : 134572 *2° - ¢/




Vakrangee Limited

Consolidoted Balance Shect as at March 31, 1017

{Amaount in ? lakhs)

Particulars Nole No. As gt March 31,2017 As ot March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
1 |[ASSETS
I [Non - Current Asscts
Property, plant and equipinent 5 2.861.95 13,213.35 27,274.05
Capital Work-in-Progress 5 4.05 - 1,009.11
Investmeni Propertics 6 8.68 8.86 9.02
Financial Assels
(i) Invesenents 7 128.52 149.94 160.00
(ii) Trade Receivbles 8 - 965.36 93.86
(iiiy Other Financial Assels 9 253.71 382.23 776,10 1,891.40 453,14 707.00
Income Tnx Assets (Net) 10 405.63 190.15 -
Other Non - Current Assels 11 34.12 1,100,97 459.94
Totnl Non-current Assets 3,696.66 16,404,93 29,459.11
2 |Curremt Assels
Inventonics 12 49915.88 50,705.70 16,936.28
Financial Assets
(i) Lnvestments 13 56.30 - -
(ti} Tmde Reecivables 14 82,435.72 84,926.83 119,276,90
(iii) Cash ond Cash cquivaients 15 58,243.73 14,058.44 682.13
{iv) Bonk Balantes other than (iii) above 15 2,076.04 2.661,62 3,138.35
(v} Loans 16 9.83 18,53 18.59
(vi) Other Financial Asscts 17 1,183.02 144,004.64 2,349,912 104,075,34 1,884.10 125.000.07
Current Tax Assets 18 400,79 285.68 250.39
Oiher Current Assels 19 28,823,27 37,757.20 30.626.57
Total Currcnt Assets 123,147.58 192,823.92 172.813.31
TOTAL 226,844.24 209,228.85 202,272.43
11 [EQUITY & LIABILITIES
I |Equity
Equity Share Capiral 20 5,262.32 5,261.96 5,034 .82
Other Cquity 21
{1) Reserves and Surplus 200,137.27 153,060.56 90,623.05
(ii) Other Reserves (54.33) {37.69) -
(1i1) Money reecived agninst Share warrants 44 - 200,082.94 - 153.022.87 25,000.00 115.623.05
Total Equily 205,375.26 158,314.83 120,657.87
2 |Liabilities
Non - Current Liahilities
Financial Liobilities
(i) Borrowings 22 - 1,221.98 3,698.55
{ii) Trade Payables 23 98.89 98.89 216.62 1,438.60 157.17 3,855.72
Employee Benelil Obligations 24 233.39 178.30 117.85
Deferred Tax Linbilittes (Net) 25 - 1,299.52 41,276.88
Total Noo-Current Liabilities 3228 2,916.42 8,250,45
3 |Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilitics
(i) Borrowings 0 14,401.89 28.275.04 31,557.40
(i1) Trade Paysbles 27 2,968.08 1L441.11 21,313.21
(i1} Other Finoncial Linbilitics 28 101.07 174,54 2.541.93 42,258.08 6,483.62 59.354.23
Other Current Lisbilities 29 448.21 1,329.89 1,654.43
Provisions 30 574.04 3.759.70 6,850.76
Employee Benefit Obligations 31 7.80 7.27 .
Current Tax Liobilitics 31 263501 642.66 5.504.69
Total Current Linbilities 21,136.70 47,997.60 73,364.11
Total Linhilities (2 + 3) 11,468.98 50,914.02 81,614.56
TOTAL 226,844.24 209,228.85 202,272.43
___|Significant Accounting Policies 14

The accompanying notes forms an inicgrol part of the consolidaicd financiat siosements

As per our report of even date

For 5. K. Patodia & Associaies
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Regisirotion No. : 112723\

ﬂ{f\ ﬁw‘ 2!
Arun Pddd 723w i~
Partner " \&‘

Membership No.: 134572

%ACCQ‘J
Place ; Mumbai s -
Daie : Moy 30, 2017

For &%q behnlf of the Bonrd of Directors

. Nishikant Hoyawnagarkar
hole-time Direcror

ash Singhania

Chicf Financi

arshi Shah
Comnpany Secretary




Vakrangee Limiled

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2017

(Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars Note No.

For the year ended March 31, 2017

For the year ended March 31, 2016

I |Income
Revenuc from Operalions 13
Other Income 34
Total Income

11 |Expcnscs
Operating Expenscs 35
Changes in Inventorics 36
Employec Benelit Expenses 37
Finance Costs 38
Deprecialion and Amortization Expensc 5,6
Olher Expenscs 39
Total Expenses

)]

Profit Before Tax

IV |Tax Expense:

(a) Current Tax

(b} Deferred Tax

(¢} MAT Credit Entitlement

¥ |Profit for the year

A4

Other Comprehensive Income

Items that will be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss

i} Exchange difference on translation of foreign cxchange

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss

i} Remeasurement of defincd bencfil obligations
Other Comprehensive Income net of tax

Total Comprehensive Income for the period
V11| No. of equity shares for eomputiog EPS 10

(1) Basic
(2) Diluted

V11l Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value T 1/- Per 40
Share):

(1} Basic ()
(2) Diluted (2)

Significant Accounling Policies 14

400,046,38
52833

400.574.7%

298,514.97

(1,018.93)
4,398.67
5,009.21
7,338.72
3,550.67

317,793.31

319,073.66
564.01

319.637.67

232,633.95

(560.64)
2,532.60
5.631.68
16,404.30
2,392.60

§2,781.40

31,111.63
(1.290.71)
{119.04)

29,701.88

259,034.49

60,603.18

24.129.53
(2.957.41)
(54.62)

53.079.52

(16.64)
(16.64)

53.062.88

5,292.10
5.303.51

10.03
10.01

21,117.50

39.485.68

(37.69)
(37.69)

39.447.99

5,198.25
5.304.25

1.62
747

The accomnpanying notes forms an integral part of the consolidoted financial statements

As per our report of even date

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registratiox No. : 112723W

%P
ArunTPoddar

Partoer 3 R4 |
Membership No.: 134572 NS

Place : Mumbai
Date ; May 30, 2017

& an hehalf of the Board of Direetors

M

I}inesh Nandwana
Managing Director & CEQ
DIN : 00062532

N I

Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar
Whole-titne Director
DIN : 00062638

=

Chief Financial QOfficer

arshi Shah
Company Secrelary



Vakrappee Limlied

Staterent of changes In cansalldated equity for the year ended March )1, 2017

{Amount in ¥ lakhvy

Other Equiny
Reserned and wrplie Oiber resen e
e Moty received Tota) equicy
Equity Share N . stirihutshie to equiry
Partlculary Share Optlens tnitruments | Fereiga Currency wgalnst thare N
Caplial Securlibes promism N - Balden of Ibe
Retalped enmnings Genernl Resene Culsanting through oiber Trandatlon warraniy
reverve Company
Atcnant comprehensbs ¢ Rtwne
Income
Badance av at April |, 2015 S0MR2 1699711 69,282.70 +.5H5.95 63350 - (795.70) 15,000.00 10,637.47
ncrease in share capilal on scooum of comaeniien
of chate W . 250.00 - . {1500m
Increase in e capriad on mecvur of canversion 714 : : . 4
of ESOPs . )
) . 4 K16 65 - . 4, .69
Amoamt recrtved o shares it durizg, the year A (2475000 5
Transferrod from Share Options Chatstandiitg.
- 1813 - . R]. . -
3 (IR1.85Y
Profit for the e - 39445 68 . 3948568
Dividends {inchading corparate dividend Ly - - {1.587.39)| (1.587.3%
Transfct 10 General Ressne - - {1,205 73| 11051 - - - -
Share-tmend panrenls {net) . N . - (2907 - - .
Rematurerertl of ot defined hemrefin oblipmions
. - - - - AT 69 - 37.69
et of taxes) ar6% (7.69)
Exchictfe tranilz o (V9E 28) (195 I%)
Balance uy at March 31, 16 829195 d199165 MIA 7 179168 37247 (31.69) 1991.98) - VERI4A
Increare in shere capila] i meosind of cunversion B . i R R
of share weTenls '
Incrense in share capitad on scomm? of comerrien
of SO 036 - - 036
Amouni receivad on sharey itared during the vax - 6.59 ° ° - em
Transferred [rom Share Optons Cuuaand ing
. .2 - .39 - -
Acooum 9 {2.39)]
Prufit for the vex: - . 530790 - - - 51,079.51
Thyviderds (ineluding comasate dividend Lax) - - (7,961,603 - - . (1.961.60)
Transfet W Oemeral Resene - - (3P4 7Y 947t - - -
Shore-bes) perymends (orl) - - - N6 - . AT
Remexamomen© of net defiomed beaxfil obbgsirors
(nct of taxes) i - - . - 6,64 (1664)
Exchange trantlations 162816 LAIS 16
Ralance ux at March 31, 1017 SN 41181 145 097.96 11,706.3% 631,93 [t ] 63118 - 10137527
The occomparniag nabes forms om inregrl part of the consoiwlated finarnpul statessnts {\
For 5. K Peiodls & Avochaine : /{4\
Chartered Acommurm
Firm's Reglsirsilon No, ; 101723W /
yi Ine b Nondwars
ng Dvraton & CEQ
DIN : 02332
Anin ar
Partrwee K [ o %

Memberkip Moz 124372

Macy : Mumnbwi
Date ; My 30, 2017

1hikanl Hayataaga
Wholetme [Hrector
DIN 006 1638




Vakrangee Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the vear ended March 31,2017

{Amopunt in T lakhs)

S. Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
No March 31, 2017 March 31, 2016

[ [Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from continuing operations 82,781.40 60,603
Profit before 1ax from discontinuing operations - -
Profit before tax 82,781.40 60,603.18
Non-cash adjustment 10 reconcile profit before tax 1o net cash flows
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 733855 16,404.13
Depreciation of investment propertics 0.17 0.17
Employee share based payment expenses 326.74 (79.18)
Nel foreign exchange difTerences 155.66 (333.85)
Allowanee for credit losses 865.86 134,89
Fair value gain on financial instrument ai fair value through Profit and less (32.88) .
Remeasurernent of defined benefit ebligations (25.45) (57.64)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment {630.54) (134.89)
Gain on sale of investments (2.14) {14.62)
Finance cosis 5,009.21 5,631,68
Interest income (201.64) (283.87)
Dividend income - (2.00)
Operating profit before working capitnl changes 95,584.94 81,868.00
Movemenis in assets and liabilities :
Drecrease / (increasc) in inventories 786.82 {33,769.43)
Decrease / {increase) in lrade receivables 2,592,16 31,435.09
Deerease / {increase) in loans and other financial assets 228357 (311.99)
Deerease / {increase) in olher current assels 905297 (7.076.02)
Deercase / (increase) in other non-current assets 1,066.85 {641.03)
Inerease / (decrease) in irade payables (8,590.16) (9.812.66)
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit oblipations 55.62 61.73
Inercase / (deercase) in provisions (3,185.65) (3,091.06)
Inerease / (decrease) in other financial liahilitics (2,440.85) (3,941.70)
Increase / {deereasce) in other eurrent liabilitics {881.69) (324.54)
Cash generated from operations 96,324.58 56,402.40
Income 1axes paid {net of refunds) {29,449.66) (29.217.21}
Net cash flow [rom /(used in) operating activitics (A} 66,874.92 27,185.19

[l |Cash flow from investing activitics

Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including CWIP (1,115.67) (1,335.55)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 4,754.99 136,13
Purchase of invcsiments (12.00) (39.94)
Proceeds from sale of investments 12.14 64.61
Decrease in foreign currencey translation reserve 1,528.¢0 (1547)
Interest received 201.64 28387
Dividends reecived - 2.00
Net cash flow from/(used in) investing aclivities (B) 5,369.20 (904.35)

il |Cash flow from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of shares 0.36 7.4

Proceeds towards securilies prcmium on issuc of shares 6.89 66.69

Repayment of borrowings (1,221.98) (4,065.17)
Imterest paid {5,009.21) (5.631.68)
Dividends paid Lo company's shareholders (6,614.95) (1,322.89)
Dividend Distribution Tax paid (1,346.65) (264.50)
Net cash flow from/{used in) in {inancing activities {C) (14,185.54) {11,210.41)
Net increase / (decrense) in cash and cash equivalents (A + B+ C) 58,058.58 15,070.43

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash cquivalents (0.16) (0.38)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the ycar (14,216.60) (29,286.67)
Cash and cash equivalents al the end of the year 43.841.84 {14,216.60)

The accompanying notes forms an integral port of the consolidated financial sienements

For 8. K. Patodia & Associatles For & on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountanis . \A
Firm's Regisiration No. : 112723W o
/ nesh Nandwana
w,oy; naging Dircctor & CEQ
U DIN : 00062532
Arun Poddar
Partner

Whelc-time Diircctor Company Secretary
DIN : 00062638

Membership No.: 134572

Place : Mumbai
Date ; May 30,2017




Vokrangee Limited

Reconcilintion of Equity as at April 1, 2015 (Consolidnted)

{Amaount in ¢ lakhs)

Particulars 1GAAP Adjustment Ind AS
I | ASSETS
Non - Current Assets
Praperty, plant and equipmem 27,274.05 - 27.274.05
Capital Work-in-Progress 1,009.11 1.009.11
Investment Properties 9.02 - 9.02
Financial Assets
(i) Investnents 160.00 - 160.00
(i1) Trade Receivables 93,86 - 93.86
(ii) Other Financial Assets 453.14 707.00 - 453,14 707.00
Income Tax Assets (Net) - -
QOther Non - Current Asscts 459.94 - 45%.94
Total Non-current Assets 18,459.12 - 29,45%.12
Current Assets
Inventories 16,936.28 16,936.28
Finaneiol Asscts
(i) Investments - - -
(ii) Trade Receivables 119.932.40 (655.50) 119,276.90
{iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 682.13 - 682.13
(iv) Bank Balanecs other than (i} above 313835 - 3,138 35
{v) Loans 18,59 - 18.59
(vi) Onher Financial Asscts 1,884.10 125,655.57 - 1.884.10 125,000.07
Intome Tax Assets {Net) 250.39 - 250.39
Onher Current Assets 30,626.57 . 30,626.57
Total Current Assets 173,468.81 {655.50) 172,813.31
TOTAL 202,927.93 (655.50) 202,272.43
1] EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital 5,054.82 - 5,034 82
Other Equity
{i) Reserves and Surplus 39.903.17 719.88 90,623,058
(i) Other Reserves - - -
(iii) Money received against Share warrants 25,000.00 114,903.17 - 25,000.00 115,623.05
Toral Equity 119.938.40 719.88 120,657.87
Linbilities
Non - Current Linbilities
Financial Ligbilities
(i) Borrowinps 3,740.60 (42.05) 3,698.55
{ii} Trade Poyables 157.17 3,897.77 - 157.17 3.855.72
Employee Benefit Obligations 117.85 . £17.85
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 4,253.08 23.80 4,276.88
Tatel Non-Current Liabilities 8,268.70 (18.25) 8,250.45
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 31,557.40 - 31,557.40
(i1} Trade Payables 21,313.21 . 21,313:21
(iii} Other Financial Liabilities 6,511.59 £9,382.20 (27.97) 6,483.62 59,354,23
Other Curment Liahilities 1,654.43 - 1,654.43
Provisions 8.356.20 (1,505.44) 6,850.76
Employee Benefit Obligarions - - -
Curmrem Tax Liobilities 5.328.40 176.29 5,504.69
‘T'ota] Current Liabilities 74,721.23 {1,357.1) 73,364.11
Totat Linbilities (2+3) §2,985.93 (1,37537) 81,614.56
TOTAL 102,927,93 {655,50) 202,272.43




Vakrangee Limited

Reconciliation of Equity as al March 31, 2016 (Consolidnted)

(Armount In T Lakhs)

Particulars 1 GAAP Adjustment Ind AS
I ASSETS

Non - Current Assets
Property, plant and equipment 13,213.35 - 13,213.35
Capital Work-in-Progress - - -
Investment Properties 8.86 . 8.86
Financiol Assets
(i) Investments 14994 149.94
{ii} Trude Receivables 965.36 - 965.36
(i1} Other Financial Assets 776,10 1,891.40 - 776.10 1,891.40
Income Tax Asscts {Nct) 190,35 - 190.35
Other Non - Current Assels 1,100.97 - £, 100.97
Total Non-current Assets 16,404.93 - 16,404.93
Current Assets
[nventories 50,705.10 - 50,705.70
Financial Assets
(i} Investments - - -
(i} Trade Retcivables 85771722 (790.39) 84,985,83
{iii) Cash and Cash equivalents 14,058.44 - 14,058.44
{iv) Bank Balances other than (iii) above 2.661,62 - 2,661.62
{v) Loans 18.53 - 18,53
{vi) Other Financial Assels 2,349.92 104,865.73 - 2,349.92 104,075.34
income Tax Asseis (Net) 285,68 - 285.48
Other Current Assets 37.757.20 - 37.757.20
Total Current Assets 193,614.3¢ (750.39) 192,823.92

TOTAL 210,019,724 (790.39) 209,218.85

mn EQUITY & LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capiial 5,291.96 5,291.96
Orber Equity
(i} Reserves and Surplus 145,861.44 7.199.12 153,060.56
(ii} Other Reserves (37.69) - (37.69)
- 145.823.75 - - 153,022.87

Total Equity 151,115.71 7,199.12 158,314.83
Linbilities
Non - Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
(i) Bormowings 1,250.00 {28.02) 1,221.98
(i1) Trade Poyables 216.62 1,466.62 - 216.62 1,438.60
Etnployee Benefit Obligations 178.30 - 178.30
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 1,285.37 14.15 1,269.52
Tolal Non-Current Linhilities 2,930.29 (13.87) 2,916.42
Current Liabilities
Financial Lizbilities
(i) Bommowings 28,275.04 - 28,275.04
(ii) Trade Payables 1144111 . 1144111
(1ii) Cther Financial Liabilines 2,555.96 42,272.11 (14.03) 2,541.93 42,258.08
Other Current Liabalitics 1,329.8% - 1,329.8%
Provisions 11.,721.30 (7,9601.60} 3,759.70
Employee Benefit Obligations 7.27 B 7.17
Curmrent Tax Liabilities G42.66 - 642,66
Totnl Current Lirbilities 55.973.24 (7,975.63) 47,997.60
Totnl Linbitiries {2+3) 58,903.53 (7.989.51) 50,914.02

TOTAL 110,019.24 {790.39) 209,228.85




Vakrangee Limited

Reconcilintion of Profit or Loss for the year ended March 31, 2016 (Consolidated)

{Amaunt in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars 1GAAP Adjustment Ind AS
1 Incame
Revenue {rorn Cperations 319,073.66 319,073.66
Other Income 564.01 564.01
Total Income 319,631.67 - 319,637.67
Il | Expenses
Operating, Expenses 232,634.39 {0.44) 232,633.95
Changes in Inventories (560.64) - (560.64)
Employee Benefit Expenses 2,536.15 (3.55) 2,532.60
Finance Costs 5603.72 27.97 5,631.68
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 16,404.30 . 16,404.30
Other Expenses 2,261.12 131.48 2,392.60
Total Expenses 258,879.04 155.45 259,034.49
{11 | Profit before (ax 60,758.63 (155.45) 60.603.18
1V | Tox Expense:
(a) Current Tax 24,129.53 . 24,129.53
(b) Deferred Tax {2,967.70) 10.29 {2,957.41)
(c) MAT Credit Entitlement 121.67 {176.29) {54.62)
21,283.50 (165.99) 21,117.50
V¥ | Profit for the year 39.475.13 10.55 39,485.68
¥l | Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will he reclassified subsequenily to
profit or loss
i) Exchange difTerence on translation of foreign -
exchange
Irems that will not be reclassified subsequenily
to profit or loss
i) Retncasuremend of defined benefit obligations . : (37.69)
(37.6%)
Other Comprehensive [ncome net ol tnx (37.69) {37.69)
Total Comprehensive income for the period 39,475.13 {27.14) 39,447.99
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Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 1 - Corporate Information

Vakrangee Limited (‘‘the Company’’) is a public limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India. The registered
office of the Company is located at ‘Vakrangee House’, Plot No. 66, Marol Co-op. Indl.
Estate, Off. M. V. Road, Marol, Andheri (East), Mumbai, Maharashtra, India. The
Company’s shares are listed on two stock exchanges in India- the Bombay Stock Exchange
(BSE) and National Stock Exchange of India (NSE}.

Vakrangee Limited along with its subsidiaries, Vakrangee e-Solutions Inc. (Philippines),
Vakrangee Finserve Limited and Vakrangee Logistics Private Limited (hereinafter referred to
as “Group™} is engaged in providing diverse solutions, activities in e-governance and e-
commerce sector through its Vakrangee Kendra with special competencies in handling
massive, multi-state, and e-governance enrollment projects, data digitization.

The consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Group’s Board of
Directors on May 30, 2017.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements. These accounting policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented by the Group unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of Preparation
i. Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (hereinafter referred to as “Ind AS”) under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act') (to the extent notified). The Ind AS are prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2016.

These consolidated financial statements for the period ended March 31, 2017 are the first
consolidated financial statements of the Group prepared in accordance with Ind AS. For all
periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2016, the Group prepared its
consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (hereinafter referred to as 'previous GAAP') used for its statutory reporting
requirement in India. Refer Note 4 for an explanation of how the transition from the previous
GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows The Group has adopted the Ind AS standards in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time
adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

ii. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the
following

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) and contingent
consideration that is measured at fair value;

e assets held for sale- measured at fair value less cost to sell;

¢ defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

¢ share based payments

ili.  Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company,
entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company

¢ has power over the investee;

e it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee ;
and

o has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.

The Company reassess whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three elements listed above.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support
this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights if
the investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:

o the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
o rights arising from other contractual arrangements;

« the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights. In assessing control, potential
voting rights that currently are exercisable are taken into account; and

o the size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of
the holdings of the other voting rights holders.

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not
have, the current ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions need
to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholder’s meetings.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group
and ceases contro]l when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. The income and expenses
Srdiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
profit and loss from the effective date the Company gains control until the datg==7
mpany ceases to control the subsidiaries. 7t




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

The financial statements of the subsidiary companies and entities (including structured
entities) controlled by the Company used in the consolidation are drawn up to the same
reporting date as of the Company, Accounting policies of the respective subsidiaries are
adjusted wherever necessary, so as to ensure consistency with the accounting policies that are
adopted by the Group under Ind AS.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

The financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies have been
consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together of like items of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses, after eliminating intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses, and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing subsidiaries:

Non-controlling interests in the net assets (excluding goodwill) of consolidated subsidiaries
are identified separately from the Company’s equity. The interest of non-controlling
shareholders may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus the noncontrolling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to noncontrolling interests even if it results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Company’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amount of the Company’s interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Company loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any noncontrolling interests.
Amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss) in the same manner as would be required
if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

B. Summary of significant accounting policies
i. Current versus non-current classification

Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current /non-
Bat classification.
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Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

An asset is treated as current when it is:

o Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date, or

o Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

o [t is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e [tis held primarily for the purpose of trading

e [t is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

¢ There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of products and services offered by the Group, operating cycle
determined is 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets

and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents,

ii. Segment Reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that
makes strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting
policies of the Group. Segment revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment
liabilities have been identified to segments on the basis of their relationship to the operating
activities of the segment.

iii. Foreign Currencies

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in INR (rounded off to lakhs),
which is also the parent company’s functional currency. For each entity the Group

ines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each =
easured using that functional currency. PR




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Transaction and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group in their functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting period.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
items are recognized in profit or loss except

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction
for future productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets when they are
regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in order 1o hedge certain foreign
currency risks

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation
for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the
net investment in foreign operation), which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary items.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-
monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or
loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit
or loss, respectively).

Group Companies

For the purposes of presenting these consolidated financial statements, the results and
financial position of foreign operations that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

» Assets and liabilities are translated into INR at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of
each reporting period.

» Income and expenses are transiated at average exchange rates for the period (unless this is
not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions),

e Equity is recorded at the historical rate on the date of issue and hence, is not required to be
re-translated at each subsequent reporting date, and

¢ resulting foreign exchange differences are recognised in other comprehenswe

d held in foreign currency translation reserve (‘FCTR"), a component of Equlty




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

When the foreign operation is either partially or fully disposed off, the proportionate share or
entire cumulative foreign exchange differences (pertaining to the said operation that are held
in FCTR as at the date of disposal) respectively, are re-classified from Equity and considered
in calculating the resulting profit / (loss) on sale of the operation. The said profit / (loss) on
sale of the operation is recognised in the Statement of Profit and loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
through acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

iv. Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue
is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Sale of services

The Group recognizes revenue on accrual basis when the significant terms of the arrangement
are enforceable, services have been delivered and the collectability is reasonably assured. The
method of recognizing the revenues and costs depends on the nature of the services rendered.
Revenue is recognized when no significant uncertainty exists as to its realisation or
collection. Commission income is recognized on earned basis for activities performed in
different services delivered at Vakrangee Kendra.

The Group executes the delivery in various e-governance projects at its Vakrangee Kendra's.
Revenue for the Group accrues on successful delivery and confirmation by the business
associate involved. The Group estimates successful delivery based on past trends and
complexities involved in delivery and revenue is accounted accordingly till the confirmation
is received. Any deviation with the actual confirmation is accounted in the period in which
the actual results are known to the Group.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have
passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods;

¢ the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

¢ the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

¢ the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31,2017

Interest Income

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted
and to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

v. Property, Plant and Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. Freehold land is not depreciated

All items of property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Such cost includes
the cost of replaced part of the property, plant and equipment and borrowing costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying property,
plant and equipment. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an
asset if, and only if| it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Group's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) are
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the
company recognizes such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciation reSpectively Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is

ent of Profit and Loss as incurred.

dnition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recogmzed i B



Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same
basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be
obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term
and useful lives.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over the useful lives, using the
straight- line method (“SLM”).Management believes based on a technical evaluation that the
useful lives of the assets reflect the periods over which these assets are expected to be used,
which are as follows:

Description of Asset Rate of
Depreciation

Buildings 1.67%

Computers and Printers, including Computer | 33.33%

Peripherals

Office equipments 20.00%

Furniture & Fixtures 10.00%

Motor Vehicles 12.50%

Plant & Machinery 6.67%

Project Assets 25.00% - 33.33%

(comprising of Computers and Printers including

computer peripherals, Fumiture and Fixtures and

Office Equipments)

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
The residual values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-
end to ensure that the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous
estimates and the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied
in the items of property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2015 measured as per the Previous
GAAP as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

vi. Taxation
Current taxes

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Current
income tax is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. The Group offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax assets
and liabilities, where it is has legally enforceable right to do so and where it intends to settle
such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax habilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and
deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside the profit and loss is recognised outside
profit and loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets 1s revicwed at each balance sheet date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities
on a net basis.

vii. Fair Value measurement

The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group takes into account the

Hity, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

gristics of the asset or liability if market participants would use when pricing the asset




Vakrangee Limited
Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the consolidated

financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

. Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

. Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

. Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to

the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation {based on the Jowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes.

viii. Investment property

Investment properties are properties that is held for long-term rentals yields or for capital
appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that is not
occupied by the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

Investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. The useful life has been determined based on technical evaluation performed by
the management expert.

Though the Group measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their
disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Transition to Ind AS
The Group has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its investment property as

recognised in its Indian GAAP consolidated financial statements as deemed cost at the
transition date, viz., 1 April 2015. 3




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

ix. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any). When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset {(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset ( or a cash-
generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset ( or cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

x. Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial hability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets
not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

sell the asset.

ay trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to .

SN
LOENS
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b) Subsequent measurement
Debt Instruments at amortised cost:

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the
contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised
cost is recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest rate method. Fair value movements are
recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group recognizes
interest income, impairment gains or losses and foreign exchange gains and losses in the
statement of profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from equity to statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as
fair value through other comprehensive income is classified as fair value through profit or
loss. Debt instruments subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments
which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the
Group may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair value in
OCI. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The
classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

Dividends from such investments are recognized in profit or loss as other income. There is no
recycling of the amounts from OCI to Profit and Loss, even on sale of investment. However,
the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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c) De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Group balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and
rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.

d) Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognise impairment loss applying the expected credit loss (ECL) model on the
financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables,
trade receivables, other contractual right to receive cash or other financial asset and financial
guarantee not designated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of
default occurring as the weights.

The Group measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial instrument has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12 months expected credit losses.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or other financial assets that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Group
always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables, the Group applies ‘simplified approach’ permitted by Ind AS 109 Financial
Instruments. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix
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Financial Liabilities

a) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

b} Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial habilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are
designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risk is recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
P&L. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
The Group has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, except for contingent consideration recognized in a business combination which is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit and loss. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair
value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Loans and borrowings

Afier initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Such amortisation is

included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

uarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment __—..

to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to i~ RAETY
. . - . . oo e TN
yment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financialy ™
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guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

c) Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

xi. Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost on First-In First-Out (FIFO) basis or net realizable
value value after providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary.
Cost of inventories comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is determined
after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary
to make the sale

xii. Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the lessee is
classified as a finance lease.

Finance Lease as a lessee

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date at fair
¢ of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
\payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability _.__
<8 achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance%<:37 ..%,% .

: : : - RN
o2dl are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are :
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directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Group’s general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there i1s no
reasonable certainty that the Group will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease
term.

Operating Lease as a lessee

Leases where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straight-line basis over the lease term except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from leased assets are
consumed. The aggregate benefit of incentives {excluding inflationary increases) provided by
the lessor is recognized as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line
basis. Contingent rentals artsing under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

xiii. Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in
statement of profit and loss in the period in which they are incurred.

xiv. Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

xv. Dividends

Provision 1s made for the amount of any dividend declared, being appropriately authorized
and no longer at the discretion of the Group, on or before the end of the reporting period but
not distributed at the end of the reporting period.

xvi. Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation, tegal or constructive, as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
mmount of the obligation.

M

B provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,

7

Jing amount is the present value of those cash flows. If the effect of the time value of -~~~ 7%,
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money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

xvii. Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence
will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
beyond the control of the Group or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Group does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the consolidated financial
statements. Payments in respect of such liabilities, if any are shown as advances.

xviii. Earnings Per Share

Basic eamings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account

¢ The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential equity shares, and

o Weighted average number of equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all the dilutive potential equity.

xix. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-
term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
and highly liquid time deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

xx. Employee Benefits
¢  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employee’s services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the benefits expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

e  Other Long-term employee benefit obligations

yabilities for compensated absences (annual leave) which are not expected to be settled

within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the treated . %
ented as non-current employee benefits obligations. They are therefore measured as -
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the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected Unit Credit method. The
benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.
Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
(i.e. actuarial losses/ gains) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current in the balance sheet if the Group does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

¢ Post- employment obligations
The Group operates the following post-employment schemes:

I.  Defined benefit plans such as gratuity
II.  Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations

The Group provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”) covering
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee’s salary and the
tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is actuarially determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash flows outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have a terms approximating to the terms of the obligation

The net interest cost, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets, is recognised as employee benefit
expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are recognised in the other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.
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been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution plans and the
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

xxi. Share-based Payments

Shared based compensation benefits are provided to employees via Vakrangee Limited
Employee Stock Option Plan.

Employee options

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of the options granted
at the date when the grant is made. The fair value of options granted under the Emplovee
Option Plan is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding increase in
equity. The total amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

¢ including any market performance conditions (e.g., the Group’s share price)

e excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (
e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an employee of the entity over a’
specified time period), and

o Including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employee
to save or holding shares for a specific period of time.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to be vest based on the non-
market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Note 3 - Critical Accounting Judgements and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
judgements, estimates and assumptions to be made that affect the reported amount of assets,
liabilities, revenue, expenses, grouping disclosures and the disclosures of contingent
liabilities. The estimates and associates assumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. These estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future period.

Application of accounting policies that require critical accounting estimates and the use of
assumptions in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

Share-based payments

i mg fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most -

priate valuation model, which is dependent on the terms and conditions of the grant. -
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This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation
model including the expected life of the share option, volatility and dividend yield and
making assumptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value
for share-based payment transactions are disclosed in Note 48.

* Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment medical benefits and
the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions.
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment
benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 47,

= Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported
fair value of financial instruments. See Note 49 for further disclosures.

Note 4 - First-time adoption of Ind AS

These consolidated financial statements, for the year ended March 31, 2017, are the first
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 2 have been applied in preparing the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended on March 31, 2017, the comparative information
presented in these consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2016 and in
the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2015 these consolidated
angial statements (the Group date of transition).

aring its opening Ind AS balance sheet and in presenting the comparative information Q\ %2?
e year ended March 31, 2016, the Group has adjusted the amounts reported prevnous]y/*i\ FRe A
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in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting standards
notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other
relevant provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAP). For the purpose of
transition from the Indian GAAP to Ind AS, the Group has applied Ind AS 101 - First Time
Adoption of Indian Accounting Standards.

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Group
financial position, financial performance and cash flows is set out in the following tables and
notes

Exemptions on first time adoption of Ind AS availed in accordance with Ind AS 101 have
been described in below.

L. Exemptions and exceptions availed on first time adoption of Ind AS 101

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions
applied in the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS

o Ind AS optional exemptions
i. Deemed Cost

Ind AS 101 permits, a first time adopter to elect to continue with the carrying values for all of
its property, plant and equipment as recognised in the consolidated financial statements as at
the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as its
deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-
commissioning liabilities. This exemption can also be used Investment properties and
intangible assets.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to measure all of its property, plant and equipment and
Investment properties at their previous GAAP carrying value.

ii. Leases

Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease.
This assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS
101 provides an option to make this assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances
existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected to be not
material.

The Group has elected to apply this exemption for such contracts / arrangements.
iii. Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

lnd AS allows an entity to designate investments in equity instruments (other than equity
tnyestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements and other than held for trading)

air value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) based on facts and

gmstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. Other equity investments are classified as at =

e through profit and loss (FVTPL). / @\%
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The Group has not elected to apply this exemption for its equity investments (other than
equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements and other than held for
trading) to designate it as FVTOCI.

iv. Measurement of Investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Ind AS atlows entity that subsequently measures an investment in a subsidiary, joint ventures
or associate at cost, may measure such investment at cost (determined in accordance with Ind
AS 27) or deemed cost (fair value or previous GAAP carrying amount) in ils separate
opening Ind AS balance sheet.

For investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries the Group has elected to apply separate
exemption available under Ind AS 101 by measuring at their previous GAAP carrying
amount cost which is the deemed cost at the date of transition to Ind AS.

¢ Ind AS mandatory exceptions
i. Estimates

An entity’s estimates in accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS shall be
consistent with estimates made for the same date in accordance with previous GAAP (after
adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those estimates were in error.

Ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2015 are consistent with the estimates as at the same date
made in conformity with previous GAAP. The Group made estimates for following items in
accordance with Ind AS at the date of transition as these were not required under previous
GAAP:

- Investment in equity instruments carried at FVTPL or FVTOCI
- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model.

ii. Classification and measurement of financial assets

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to assess classification and measurement of financial assets on
the basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at the date of transition to Ind AS.

Accordingly, the Group has determined the classification of financial assets based on the
facts and circumstances that exist on the date of transition.

IL. Reconciliations between previous GAAP and Ind AS

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash
flows. The following tables represent the reconciliations from previous GAAP to Ind AS.
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Reconciliation of total equity as at March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015

¥ in lakhs
Particulars Notes Mazroc:1631, A%.;lsl’

Total Equity {shareholders’ funds) as per Previous 145,823.75 114,903.17
GAAP

Adjustments

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables l (790.39) (655.50)
Proposed dividend and tax on dividend 2 7.961.60 1,510.37
Borrowings- transaction cost adjustment 3 42.05 46.24
Prior period expense adjusted - (181.23)
Tax effects of adjustments (14.14) -
Total adjustments to equity 7,199.12 719.88
Total Equity as per Ind AS 153,022.87  115,623.05

Reconciliations of total comprehensive income for the year ended March 31, 2016

Tin lakhs

Particulars Notes | March 31,2016
Profit after tax as per previous GAAP 39,475.13
Adjustments
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables 1 (134.89)
Employee stock option expense recognized based on fair value

4 {55.16)

method
Borrowings- transaction cost adjustment 3 (27.98)
Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations 5 57.64
Prior period expenses adjusted 181.23
Tax effects of adjustments (10.29)
Total adjustments 10.55
Profit after tax as per Ind AS 39,485.68
Other comprehensive income 6 (37.69)
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS 39,447.99

Impact of Ind AS adoption on the statcments of cash flows for the year ended March 31,

2016
T in lakhs
Notes P(Ei::]l:s Adjustments Tnd AS

Net cash flow from operating activities 1,2 26,727.31 457.88| 27,185.19
Net cash flow from investing activities 1,2 (1,087.16) 182.81 (904.35)
Net cash flow from financing activities 1,2 | (12,726.26) 1,515.85] (11,210.41)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 19 12,913.89 2,156.54| 15,070.43
equivalents ’

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 April 1915 3,820.48 | (33,107.15)| (29,286.67)
2015 -

Cash and cash equivalents as at 31 March 1215 16,734.37| (30,950.97)| (14,216.60)
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Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year cnded March 31, 2017

Notes to first-time adoption
1) Trade receivables

As per Ind AS 109, the Group is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising
the allowance for doubtful debts. As a result, the allowance for doubtful debts increased by ¥
134.89 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 T 655.50 lakhs). Consequently, the total
equity as at March 31, 2016 decreased by ¥ 790.39 lakhs (April 1, 2015 ¥ 655.50 lakhs) and
profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by T 134.89 lakhs.

2) Proposed dividend

Under the previous GAAP, dividends proposed by the board of directors after the balance
sheet date but before the approval of the consolidated financial statements were considered
adjusting events. Accordingly, provision for proposed dividend was recognized as a liability.

Under Ind AS, such dividends are recognized when the same is approved by the shareholders
in the general meeting. Accordingly, the liability for proposed dividend (excluding corporate
dividend tax) of ¥ 6,614.95 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 T 1,258.71 lakhs)
included under provisions has been reversed with corresponding adjustment to retained
earnings. Consequently, the total equity increased by an equivalent amount.

3) Borrowings

Ind AS 109 requires transaction costs incurred towards origination of borrowings to be
deducted from the carrying amount of borrowings on initial recognition. These costs are
recognized in the profit and loss over the tenure of the borrowing as part of the finance cost
by applying effective interest rate method.

Under previous GAAP, these transaction costs were charged to profit and loss as and when
incurred. Accordingly, borrowings as at March 31, 2016 have been reduced by ¥ 28.02 lakhs
(April 1, 2015 ¥ 42.05 lakhs) with a corresponding adjustment to retained earnings. The total
equity increased by an equivalent amount. The profit for the year ended March 31, 2016
reduced by ¥ 27.98 lakhs as a result of the additional interest expense.

4) Employee stock option

Under the previous GAAP, the cost of equity-settled employee shared-based plan were
recognised using the intrinsic value method.

Under Ind AS, the cost of equity settled share-based plan is recognised based on the fair
value of the options as at the grant date. Consequently, the amount recognised in share option
outstanding account increased by ¥ 109.50 lakhs as at March 31, 2016 (April 1, 2015 ¥ 54.34
lakhs). The profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 decreased by ¥ 55.16 lakhs, There is no
impact on equity.
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Vakrangee Limited

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017

5) Remeasurements of post- employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets,
excluding amounts included in the net interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss.

Under the previous GAAP, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit and loss for
the year. As a result of this change, the profit for the year ended March 31, 2016 increased by
¥ 57.64 lakhs. There is no impact on the total equity as at March 31, 2016.

6) Other comprehensive income

Under Ind AS, all items of income and expense recognised in a period should be included in
profit or loss for the period, unless a standard requires or permits otherwise. Items of income
and expense that are not recognised in profit or loss but are shown in the statement of profit
and loss as “other comprehensive income™ includes remeasurement of defined benefit plans
and fair value gains or (losses) on FVTOCI equity instruments. The concept of other
comprehensive income did not exist under previous GAAP.
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Vakrangee Li

Notes to consolidated inancial statemenis as on March 31, 2017

Note 5 - Property, Plant und Equipment

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

{a)

Computers including

{b)

Description Buildings Plant and Muchinery | Fumitures and Fixtures | Muter Vehicle | Office Equipments R Totnl CWIP Grand Tatul
Computcr Peripherals

Cost or Valuation
At April 1, 2015 1,025.29 998.76 5,452.34 52,715 1,509.36 94,887.33 103,925.83 1,009.11 104,934.94
Additions - 34371 7.75 5.21 12,50 1,975.49 234466 - 2,344.66
Disposals/Transfers - - 9.38 - - 207.57 21695 1,009.11 1,226.06
At March 31, 2016 1,025.29 1,342.47 5,450.70 57.96 1,521.86 96,655.25 106,053.54 - 106,053.54
Additions 396.26 361.45 34.00 123.63 4443 149.53 1,109.29 4.05 1,113.34
Disposals/Transfers - 210 5,090.38 34.11 1,399.95 94,819.74 101,346.28 - 101,346.28
At March 31, 2017 1,421.55 1,701.82 394.33 147.48 166.34 1,985.04 5,816.55 4.08 5,820.60
Depreciation and Impuirment
At April 1, 2015 129.96 32576 4,443.02 20.61 1,333.95 70,398.48 76,651.78 - 76,651.78
Depreciation charged for the year 16.76 89.01 840.18 7.26 150.75 15,300.18 16,404.13 - 16,404.13
Disposals/Transfers 918 206.33 215.72 - 21572
At Murch 31, 2016 146.72 414.76 5,273.81 27.87 1,484.70 85,492.32 92.840.19 - 92.840.19
Depreciuion charged for the year 20.06 104.18 130,60 10.17 26.95 7,046.58 7.338.55 - 7,338.55
Disposals/Transfers - 0.28 5,090.38 17.90 1,396.74 90,718.83 97,224.14 - 9722414
At March 31, 2017 166.78 518.67 314.04 20.14 114.91 1,820.07 2,954.60 - 2,954.60
Net Book Value
At March 31, 2017 1,254.76 1,183.16 80,29 127.34 51.42 164.97 2,861.95 405 2,866.01
Al March 31, 2016 878.57 927.71 176.89 30.09 3716 11,162.93 13,213.35 - 13,213.35
ALApnl 1, 2015 895.33 673.00 1, 009.32 32.14 175.40 24,488.85 27,274.05 1,009.11 28,283.16

For Property, plant & equipment existing on April 1, 2015 ie. its date of transition to Ind AS, the company has used India GAAP carrying value as deemed cosls,

{c) Disposal of Assets : During the year the company has idemificd and disposed off cenain project assets which had become obsolcte due 1o continuous utilisation for project delivery and frequent movement of those assels from one project delivery centre to another

(d)

since their acquisition. The carrying amount of majority of those assels was fully amortised and those assets were not in usable condition and hence, the Company has discarded those assels.

Details of Churges

The above asseis have been given as ficst pari-passu charge sccunity for working capital facilities availed from banks.




Vakrangee Limited
Notces o consolidated Minancial statements as on March 31, 2017

Notc 6 - Investment Properties
(Amount in T lakhs)

(=) Description Amount \

Gross Block

At April 1,2015 11.73
Additions -
Disposals -

At Mareh 31, 2016 11.73
Additions -
Disposals -

At March 31,2017 11.73

Depreciation and Impairment

At April 1,2015 2.7
Depreciation charged for the year 0.17
Disposal -

At March 31,2016 2.88
Depreciation charged for the year 0.17
Disposal -

At March 31,2017 3.05

Net Book Value

At March 31, 2017 8.68
At March 31, 2016 8.86
At April 1, 2015 9.02

(%) Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment property
{Amount in T takhs)

Particulars At31st March 2017 At 31st March 2016
Renlal income derived [rom investment properties 1.50 1.50
Less - Depreciation 0.17 0.17
Profit arising from investment propertics before indirect 1.33 1.33
cxpenscs

{¢) Forinvesiment propery exisling on April 1, 2015 i.c. its date of transition Lo Ind AS, the company has used India GAAP carrying
value as deemed cost.

(d) Details of charges
The above assets have been given as [irst pari-passu charge security for working capital facililies availed from banks.

(¢) AsatMarch 31,2017 and March 31, 2016, the fair value of properly is T 179.59 lakhs and ¥ 122.00 lakhs respectively.




Vakrangee Limiled

Notes to consolidated financinl statemenis as on March 31, 2017
Note 7 - Investments

(Non - Current)
{Amount in T lakhs)

[ Particulars [ As at Mareh 31,2017 As a1 March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 |

(n) Unguoted
Investment carricd nt Foir value through Profit or Loss
{FVTPL)
- In Equity Sharcs
2,500 Equity Shares of CSC e-Governance Services India 14.30 25.00 25.00
Limited of T 1080/- each fully paid up
(March 31,2016 : 2,500 Equity shares, April 1, 2015 : 2,500

Cquity shares)
(A) 44.30 25.00 25.00
(h) Quoted
Investment carried ai Fair value through Profit ar Loss
{FVTPL)
Investments in Mutunl Funds .
24,9375 units of Aditya Birla Real Estale Fund - | of T 1,00,000/- 11,72 §5.00 [5.00

each partly paid up 60,000/~ per unit
(March 31, 2016 : T 60,000/~ per unit, 24.9375 units, Aprl I,
2015 : T 60,000/ per unit, 24.9375 unils)

1,20,000 units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund Series 12.05
7 of T10/- each fully paid up
{March 31, 2016 ; Nil units, Apdl 1, 2015 ; Nil units)

99,990 units of Union Asset Aliocation Fund - Moderaie Plan 14.18 10.00 10.00
Growth of T 10/- each fully paid up
(March 31,2016 : 99,990 units, Apnl I, 2015 ; 99,990 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oriented Fund - Series 1 of - - 30.00
T 10/- each fulky paid up
{March 31, 2016 : Nil units, April 1, 2015 ; 2,99.990 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oricnted Fund - Series 2 of - - 20.00
710/ cach fully paid up
(March 31, 2016 ; Nit units, April 1, 2015 ; 2,00,000 units)

Nil units of Union Capital Protection Oricnted Fund - Series 5 of - 10.00 10.00
2 10/- each fully paid up
{March 31,2016 : 1,00,000 units, April 1, 2015 : 1,00,000 units)

4.,99,990 units of Union Trigger Fund Series 2 - Regular Plan of - 50.00 50.00
T 10/- each fully paid up*
{March 31, 2016 ; 499,950 units, Apnil 1, 20135 : 4,909,000 units)

3,35.077.757 units of Union Small & Midcap Fund - Regular 46.27 39.94 -
Plan of T 10/- each fully paid up
{March 31,2016 : 3,35.077.757 units, April 1, 2015 : Nil unils)

(B} 84.22 124.94 135.00

TOTAL (A +B) 128.52 149.94 160.00




Vakrangee Limited

Noles to consolidnted financial statements os on March 31, 2017

Aggregate nmount of quoted invesiments B422 124,94 135.00
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 84.22 124,94 135.00
Aggrepate amount of unquoted investments 44.30 25.00 25.00

* This investment has been classified as Current Investments as a1 March 31, 2017 and has been disclosed in Note 13,

Investment ar fair value through profit and loss reflect invesiment in quoted and unquated equity securitics and quoted mutual fund units.

The fair value of the unqueted equity shares have been estimated using valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is signifieant to the fair value measurement is directly
observable.

The fair value of quoted mutual fund units are based on quoted net assed value ar the reporting doie.

Note 8 - Trade Receivahles

{Non Current)
{Amount in 2 lakhs)

(ai Particulors As al Morch 31,2017 —| As at March 31, 2016 [ As at April 1, 2015 |
(Unsecured)
Considered Good - 965.36 93.86
Considercd Doubtfut - 44.50 44.50
- 1,009.86 138,36
Less: Allowance for credit Losses - 44.50 44.50
TOTAL . 965.36 93,86

Noie 9 - Other Financial Assets

(Non - Current)
{Amount in T lakhs)

J Patticulars As ol Maorch 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
Deposits with bank
- with maturity period ol more than 12 manths 187.61 768.05 453,14
Advance 1o Owned Qutlets 66.10 8.05 -
TOTAL 253.71 77610 453,14
* Amount held as margin money or security ngainst borrowings, 187.61 768.05 453.14

guaraniee, athcr commiiments

Note 10 - Income Tax Assets (Net)

{Non - Current)
{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

[ Particulars Ax at March 31,2017 As ot March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015 |
- Income Tax {net of provision lor taxation) 405,63 190.35 -
TOTAL 405.63 190.35 -

Note |1 - Other Non-Current Assels
{Amount in T lakhs)

| Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 Asal April 1, 2015 |
Capital Advances 34,12 1,100.28 458.52
Prepaid expenses - 0.69 1.42
TOTAL 34.12 1,100.97 459.94

Note 2 - Inventories
{Amount in T lakhs}

(nﬂ Particulars As ol March 31,2017 As ot March 31, 2016 | As a1 April 1, 2015 |
(i} Project Material 44,118.98 45,727.84 12,505.03
(it) Work in Progress 4.785.70 4,258.32 3,745.17
(iii) Stock-in-Trade 1,004.74 513.19 465.71
(iv) Coasumables 139 201.57 209.02
(v) Stores & Spares 207 4.78 11.36
TOTAL 49,918.88 30, 705.70 16,936.28

(b) Basis of vajuation of Inventories
inventories arc valued at lower of cost or net realizable value on FIFQ basis which is in accordance with Ind AS-2.




Vakrangee Limited

Noles 10 consolidoted finnncinl slatements as on March 31, 2017

Note 13 - Investments

{Currcnt)
{Amount in T lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 | Asatl April 1, 2018 |
(a) Quoted
Investment carried a1 Fair value through Profit or Loss
{FVTPL}

Investments in Mutual Funds

499,990 units of Union Tripger Fund Series 2 - Regular Plan of
T 10/- each (ully paid up

{March 31, 2016 : 4,99,990 units, Aprl 1, 2015 : 499,990
units)*

TOTAL

Ageregate amount of quoted investments
Agprepate market value of quoted investmncnis

56.30

56.30

56.30
56.30

* The above investmeni was classified s Non-Current Invesiments as at March 31, 2016 and April [, 2015 end has been disclosed in Note 7. The maturity of the said investment being due
in the financial year 2017-18, it hos been classified as current as at March 31,2017,

Investment a1 fair value through profit and loss reflcct investinent in quoted and unquoted equity securities and quoted mutual fund units.

The fair value of quoted mutual fund units are based on quoted net asset value ot the reponing date.

Note 14 - Tende Receivahles

(Current)
{Amount in ¥ [akhs}
(n} Particulars As at March 31,2017 | As at March 31,2016 | Asal April 1,2018 |

{Unsocured)
Considered Good 83,226.11 B4,986.83 119,276.90
Considered Doubaful 871.05 790,39 655.50
84,097.16 85,777.22 119.932.40
Less: Allowance for credin Losses 1.661.44 790.39 655,50
TOTAL 82,435.72 B4.986.83 115,276.50

{b] Debts due from related parties

Trade Receivables are non-interest bearing and terms are generally from 60 (o 90 days.

Note 15 - Cnsh & Cash equivatenis

{Amount in T lakhs)

(a) Particulars

As at March 31,2017 [

As nt March 31, 2016

Asnt April 1, 2015 |

(A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(i) Batances wilh Banks :

- Current Accounts

- Deposil Accounis
{ii’} Cash-in-hand

(B) Bank Balances other than above
(i) Earmorked balances in uncloimed dividend account
(ii) Fixed Deposits with inaturity peried of inore than 3 months
but less than 12 nonths *
TOTAL

* Amount held as margin money or security against borrowings,
guarantee, other commitments

{b) Forthe purpose of cash flow statement

52,186.01 14,051.34 67549
6,041.29 - -
16.43 7.10 6.64
58,243.73 14,058.44 682.13
4971 3013 3182
2,026.33 2.631.49 3,104.53
2,076.04 2,661.62 3,136.35
1.868.51 2.631.49 3,104.53

{Amount in ? lakhs)

| Particulnrs

As i March 31,2017

As at Mareh 31, 2016

As ot April 1, 2015 |

{A) Cash & Cash Equivalents
(i} Balances with Banks :

- Current Accounts

- Deposil Accounts
(ii) Cosh-in-hand

Less : - Cash Credit
TOTAL

52,186.01
6,041.29
16.43

58,243.73

14,401.89

43,841.84

14,05).34
7.10
14,058.44
28,275.04

(14,216.60)

675.49
6.64
682.13
29.968.80
(29,286.67)




Note 16 - Loans

Vakrangee Limited

Notes to consolidated finzncinl statements a5 on March 31, 2017

{Amount in T lakhs)

| Particulars As nl March 31, 2017 T As a1 March 31, 2016 As at Apnl 1, 2015 \
(i} Loan to Related Parties
{Unsecured, considered good)
Dues from associates / relaied parties - -
{ii) Other Loans
(Unsecured, considered pood)
Loans 1o others 9.83 18.53 18.59
9.83 18.53 18.59
TOTAL 9.83 18.53 18.59
Note 17 - Other Financial Asscts
(Current)
{Amount in T lakhs)
[ Particulnrs As nf March 31,2017 As at Mareh 31, 2016 AsatApril 1,2018 |
(i} Security Deposits
Sccurity Deposit 46.54 1,181.98 1,177.64
Eamest Money Deposit 41.00 50.35 130.35
87.54 1,232.33 1,307.99
(ii} Others
Other Receivables 1.111.33 1,099.95 575.48
Advanees 1o BCAs 11.55 17.64 0.63
Less : - Expecled Credit Loss 27413 - -
TOTAL 1,]83.02 1&49.92 1135-1.10
Notc 18 - Current Tax Assels
{Amount In 2 lakhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31,2017 [ As at March 31,2016 | Asat April ], 2015 |
Income Tax {net of provision for taxation) 400,79 285.68 150.3%
TOTAL 400,79 185,68 250.39
Note 19 - Other Current Assets
{Amount in T lakhs)
Particulars As at March 31, 2017 As at March 31,2016 [ As nt April |, 2015 |
Advances 1o Vendors 28.218.87 37.553.18 30,370.68
Prepaid Expenses 236 58 57.80 200.15
MAT Credit Entittement 185.91 121.49 12.87
Balances with siatulory / revenue authorities
- Sales Tax 49.68 24.73 28.03
- CENVAT Credit receivable 132.23 - 14.84
TOTAL 28,823.27 37,757.20 30,626.57
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Vakrangee Limiled

Notes to lidated B I st as on Mareh M, 2017

Nate 10 - Equity Share Capilal
Equity share capital
(i) Authorised ghare capitat {(Amount in T Iukhs}

. Number of shares
Particclars in Inkhs) Amount
At 0 Aprl I, 2015 71.500.00 7200.00
In¢rease duning the vear - -
Ax at March )1, 206 7.500.00 1500.00
In¢rease during the vear - -
As ot March 31, 2017 7,500.00 1.500.00
{ii} Puid up Equity share capital {Amount in ¥ lakhy)

. Number of shares
Particulars {in Iakh} Amount
As at April I, 2015 50M.82 5.034.52
tarued duriag the year - -
Evercise of options 7.4 114
Onher movements 250.00 250.00
AS at Mareh 3, 2016 5,191,9% 5,291.96
lsswed during the year . .
Exercise of options 036 0.36
Onher movements . -
At at March 31,2017 519132 5.291.3;
iii} Detaits of sharcholders holding more than 5% thares in the Company

Ag ut March )1, 2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April I, 2018

ieul " g -
Particulrs ““";:I":L:;""' * Holding h“"('::.':.:;:;""’ % Holding “""’:"I":;:;"m % Halding
Vakrangee Holdings Private Limited 1,253.35 23.69% 1,253.75 2).69% 1,253.75 24 90%
NID Capital Private Limited 64936 12.27% 64936 12.27% 399.36 183%
{Formerty known as Vakrangee Capital Private Limiled)
Life Insuranes Corporstion of India .20 611% J13.20 6.11% LIS 6.62%
Dincsh Nanch 0167 3.62% 291.61 1.62% 297.67 191%

{iv) Detaited note on the terms of the righis, preferentes and restrictions reluting to ench clnss of shares including restrictions on the disiribution of dividends and repayment of capital.

The Company has only one class of Equity Shares having a par satue of T 1/ per share Each holder of Equity Sharo is entitled to one vole per share. The Company deetases and pavs dividend in Indian Rupecs During the
year ended March 31, 2017, the amaunt of per share dividend d a3 distributions 1o Equity Sharcholders is 4 1,25 per share of 2 1/- each

In Lhe cvemt of liquidalion of the Campany, the helders of Equity shares will be entitled to reecive remaining assets of the Company:, nficr distnibution of all prefeeential smounts. The distrihurion will be in proportion 1o the
number of Equity shares held by the sharcholders

The Banrd of Directors of the Compary, in their meeting held on May 30, 2017, has recommended dividend of T Rs.2 per share on fully paid up equity share af T 1/~ ¢ach far the financial year ended March 31, 2017,
subject to members approval in the ensuing Annual General Mecling.

(v} Apgregute details for five immedintely previaus reporting peniods for each class of shares
{No. of shares in Inkhs)
Particulars Az at March 31, 1017 Ay ui March 31, 246

- No of shares allored as fully paid vp pursuan Lo cantracts -

without payrment being reccived in cash .
- No, of shares allotted as fllv paid by wav ¢f Bonus Shares 230240 1,402 40
- No of shares boughl baek - -

- No. of shares ixsued on cxertise of options granted under the
ESOP scheme. 37.53 33,66




Vakrangee Limited

Notes to consclidated financial statements as on March 31, 2017

Note 21 - Other Equity

(i) Reserves and surplus

{(Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2017 As at March 31, 2016 As at April 1, 2015
Sceuritics Premium Reserve 42,009.83 41,995.65 16,997.11
Share Options Qutstanding Account 2.063.68 2,265.82 1,901.05
Deferred Employee Compensation Expense (1,371.76) (1,893.35) (1,267.56)
General Reserve 11,706.39 7,791.68 4,585.95
Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss 145,097.94 103,894.74 69,202.20
Faretgn Curmrencey translation Reserve 631.18 {993.98) (795.70y
Total 200,137.27 153,060.56 90,623.05

() Securities Premium Reserve

{Amountin ¥ lakhs)

Particulars

Year ended March 31,

Year ended March 31,

2017 2016
Opening halance 41,995.65 16,997.11
Add:- On share issued during the year 6.89 24,816.69
Add:- Trensfer from shares options outsianding account 7.29 181.85
Closing balance 42.005.83 41,995.65

{b) Share Options Quistanding Account

{Amount in T Iakhs)

Year ended March 31,

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2017 2016

Opening halance 2,265.82 1,901.05

Add:- On further grant of oplions - 1,065.69

Less:- Reversal due 10 Lapsation of option {194.85) (519.07)

Less: Transfer 10 Securitigs premium account (7.29} (181.85)

Closing balance 2,061.68 2,265.82

{c) Deferrcd Emplovee Compensalion Expense

{Amouut in T lakhs)

Year ended March 31,

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2017 2016

Opening balance {1,893.35) {1,267.56)

Add:- On further grant of options - (1,065.69)

Less:- Reversal due to Lapsation of option 150.98 £90.99

Less:- Amortised during the year 370.61 248,91

Closiug balance {1,371.76) {1,893.35)

{d} General Reserve

{Amount in ¥ Iakhs)

Year ended March 31,

Particulars Yenr ended March 31,
2017 2016

Opening balance 7,791.68 4,58595

Add:- Transfer from Profit & Loss account 3.914.71 3,205.73

Less:- Transfer Lo Profil & Loss account -

Closing balance 11,706.39 7.791.68

{¢) Surplus in Statement of Profit & Loss

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Year ended March 31,

Particulars Year ended March 31,
2017 2016
Qpening balance 103,894.74 69,202.20
Add:- Profit for the year 53,079.52 39,485.68
Less:- Transfer to General Reserve account (3,914.71) (3,205.73)
Less:- Dividend declared (6,614.95) (1,322.89)
Less:- Corporate Dividend Tax {1.346.65) {264.50)
Closing balance 145,097.94 103,894.74

(f) Foreign Currency Translation Reserve

{Amount in ¥ lakhs)

Year ended March 31,

Particul Year ended March 31,
prijeufars 2017 2016

Qpening balance (993.98) (795.70)

Translation rescrve for the year },625.16 (198.28)

Closing balance 631.18 (993.98)




Vakrangee Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statemenis as on March 31, 2017
Note 22 - Borrowings

{Non - Current)
{Ameunt in 2 lakhs)

[ Particutars As at March 31,1017 ] As at March 31, 2016 | As at April 1, 2015 |
Secured Loans
Term Loans
- Fromn Banks - 1,221.58 3.698.55
- From Others - - -
TOTAL . 1,211.98 3,698.55

Terms of repayment of term loans and other laans,
Tenn Loan from Banks (March 31, 2016 and April 1, 2015} :

|, The Company had taken a tenin loan of T 2,500.00 lakhs. The rate of interest was 11.95% p.o. The loan was to be repaid in |6 quarterly installments of T 156.25 lakhs stacting
from availobility-curn-moratorium period of 15 months from the date of first disbursement (first instalment payable on 31.05.2015), thereby total tenor of the loan will be 63
months, However, the Company has made prepayinent of the toan during the yenr and therefore, Lhere is no amount outstanding 1owards the said Yoan as on March 31, 2017.

2, The Company had {aken a term loan in the farm of External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) of USD 10 million, The borrowings werc made at an interest rate equal 1o the sum
of LIBOR and the Maryin as specified in the Term Loan Facility Agreement. The payment ol inlerest w0 be made quarterly. The rate of interest was 3.561% p.a. The loan was o be
repaid in 12 quarterly installments starting from June 30, 2014, with first 1 | installments in ¢qual amounts & the amount of the last i.e. rwelflh instalimeni being the batance of
principol pending for repayment, thercby 1otol tenor of the loan 1a be five years. The Company has made prepayment of the said loan during the year and therefore, there is na
amount outstanding towards the spid loan as on March 31, 2017,

The Company had entered into a Cross Currency & Interest Rate Swap facility for hedging of the ECB repayments {principal and interest), By way of this swap facility, the rate of
interest had been fixed at 9.62% p.a. for complete tenor of the term loan. The spot reference rate for repayment of the said loan had been fixed 212 56.08 for | USD.

The bank had sanctioned Loan Equivalent Volue (LEV) of T 649,30 lakhs under currency swap faeility. Negative Mark-to-Market threshold limit for margin call had been fixed at
T 500.00 lokhs.

In case, the nct payables exceed the exposure, the Bank has the right to call for additional deposit margin forthwith 19 tnaintain the exposure within the threshold linit, The
Comnpany shall deposit cash collatern] a5 per Bank’s insiructions, if ncgative MTM exceeds T 500.00 lokhs.

Nature of security nf cach type of secured loans,

i} Tenn Loans from Banks {3 2500.00 lakhs)

1. First pari-passu charge by way of hypothecation on miero ATM, Finaneial [nclusion {F1} kits and assets purchased out of the said rupee tern loan.

2. First charge an the designated bank account through which all the revenues and receivables of all the F1 centres will be routed.

3. First charge on the Debt Service Reserve account (DSRA) and any other bank nccount of the company with respect to proposed FI project.

4. Second pari-passu charge on all the present and fulure current asscts of the Company.

5. Sccond pari-passu charge on the movable fixed nssets of the company (present & future), except micro ATMs and other Fl kils.

6. Sceond parri-passu charge through mortgage on the office preinises of the Company, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industrip! Sociery & Hind Saurashtra Industries Co-
Openative Sociery Limiied, Marol, Andheri (Enst), Mumbat.

7. Second pari-passu charge on office premise of Vakrangee Technologics Limited, situated at Marol Co-Operative industrial Society, Maorol, Andhert (East), Mumbai.

8. Second pari-passu charge on property siluated at Deer Park, New Delhi.
9. Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Director & CEQ of the Company & Corporate Guarantee of Vokrangee Technologies Limited.

i} Term Loans from Banks - External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) :

1. First chorge on all moveable and iminoveable fixed assets financed out of the tenn loan, with a minimuin asset cover ratio of 1.33 vimes.
2. Second parri-passu charge on all asscts of the Company cxcluding those financed througl this tenn loan.

3. Second pari passu chorge on the UID kits procurcd from cxisting term loans availed from banks.

4, Personal Guarantee of Mr. Dinesh Nandwann, Managing Dircctor & CEQ of the Company.

Details of the aggregale of each loan guarantecd by direciors or others, each head-wise.

All the term loans wnouating to T Nil (March 31, 2016 : T ),221.98 lakhs, April 1, 2015 :  3,698.55 |akhs) guarantecd by Mr, Dinesh Nandwano, Managing Director & CEO of the
Company.

Details of continuing default in the repayment of loans and interest, specifying (he period and amaunt separately in each case,
There has been no default in the repayment of loans ar intercst thereon as on date.

Note 13 - Trade Payables
(Non - Current)
{Amount in T lakhs)

Particulars Axnal March 31, 2017 —l As ot March 31, 2016 [ As st April 1, 2015 I
Trade Payables 98.89 216.62 157,17
TOTAL 98.89 116,62 157.17

* Includes ducs to micre, smoll and medium enterprises




Vakranpee Limited

Notes to consolidnted linancianl statements ax on March 31, 2017

Kote 24- Employee Benelit Obligation

(Non = Current)
(Amount in T lakhs}

\ Particulars As nt Mareh 31, 2017 As nt March 31, 2016 [ As at April 1, 2015 |
Provision for Employees’ benefits 23339 178.30 117.85
TOTAL 233.39 17830 117.85

Wote 25 - Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)}
(Amount in T [akhs)

Particulars As at March 31,2017 [ As nt March 31, 2016 [ AsatApril 1,2015 ]

Linbilities
(i) On nccount of differenee in depreciation on Fixed Assets - 1.305.77 4.268.47
(it} Provision for Leave Encashment - - -
(i) Timing differences on Tox Provisions - 14.15 23.80

(A) - 1.319.92 4292.77
Assets
(i) On account of difference in depreciation on Fixed Assets 749.67 -
(i) Provision for Leave Encashment and Gratuiry 80,71 20.40 15.39
(iii} Timing differenecs on Tax Provisions 15.38 - -

(B} 845,76 20,40 15.39

TOTAL (A - B) (845.76) 1299.52 4,276.58

Adjustment : Deferred Tax Asset not accounied * 845.76 - -
Balance earried 1o Balance Sheet - 15299.52 4,276.88

* The timing difTcrences arising as at year-end are deferred tax asscis. There are no items for which there is deferved 1ax liability as at year-end. Hence, on the basis ol rcasonable
certainty, such deferred tax asscts hove not been recognised and eamied fonvard.

Note 16 - Barrowings

(Current}
{Amount in T lakhs)
[ Particulars As at March 31, 2017 B As st March 31, 2016 [ AsatAprill, 2015 \
Secured Loans
Loans repayable on demnand
- Fromn Banks 14,401 89 28,275.04 29,968.80
Unsecured Lonns
- From Related Porties - - 1,588.60
TOTAL 14.401.89 2827504 31,557.40

Nature of seeurity of each type of secured loans.
a) Loans repayable on demand from Banks :

The Company had entered into a Sccunty Trustce Agreetnent for availing the working capital aeilitics under the consertivin banking arrangement and the limit sanctioned s
aggregating to T 75,000,00 lakhs vide agreement dated Junc 5, 2015, Based on the operational requirctnents, the Company has proposed revision in working eapital factlitics from
R 51,090.00 lakhs (as ar March 31, 2016) to T 33,200.00 lakhs (as at March 31, 2017), The Lead Bank vide their letter dated March 27, 2017 has approved the assessment of’
working eapital requirements at the reduced level o 33,200.00 lakhs,

These facilitics arc seeured ngainst the following charge on various assets of the Company :

1. Primary : First pari-passu charge on the entire current assets of the Compnny, bolh present & luture,

2, Collateral :

- Firsi pan-passu charge on the entire inovable fixed assets of the Company, both present & future,

- First pari-passu charge on all the iinmovable asscts of the company acquired afler 31.03.201 ), both present and luture.

- First pori-passu charge on cniite lands & office preinises of the company, situated at Marol Co-Operative Industria! Estate & Hind Saurashira Industrics Co-Operative Socicty

Limited, Marol, Andhcni (East), Mumbai,

- First pari-passu charge on office premises, situaled o1 Marol Co-Operative Industrial Estatc, Maro), Andheri (E), Mumbai of Vakrangee Technologies Limited
- First Pani passu charge on residential house a1 Chandigarh.

3. Corporate Guarantee of Company, Vokmngee Technologics Linited 10 the extent of valuc ol property,

4, Personal Guaranice of Mr. Dinesh Nandwana, Managing Dircclor & CEQ of the Company,

b) Detxils of the aggregate of each Inan guaranieed by directors or others, each head-wise.
All the loans repnyable on demand from banks amounting to T 14,401.89 lakhs (March 31, 2016 : ¥ 28,275.04 lakhs, Apnl 1, 2015 ; T 29,968.80 lakhs) guaranieed by Mr, Dinesh
Nandwann, Maonnging Direclor & CEQ of thc Company.

¢) Detxils of continuing default in the repnyment of loans and interest, specifying the period and amount separately in each ease.
There has been no defaull in 1he repaytent of loans or interest thereoit as on date.




Note 27 - Trade Payables
(Current)

Vakranpee Limited

Noles io consolidated finnncial stotcments as on March 3, 2017

{amount in 2 lakhs})

L Particulors

As al Mareh 31,2017

As a1 March 31, 2016

Asat April I, 2015 |

Trude Payables®
TOTAL
* Jncludes dues 1o micro, small and medium cnterprises

Note 28 - Other Financinl Linhilities

2,968,685

1,968.68

—t

42.92

11.441.11
1144141

75.59

21013221

Zlgl].ll

154.69

{Amount in t lakhs}

L Particulars

As nt March 31,2017

Ax nt March 31, 2016

As at April |, 2015 |

Current maturities of long-term debts
Cutrenmt maturitics of finance lcasc obligations
Interest acerued but not duc on borrowings
Security Deposit
Unpaid Dividend

TOTAL

Nate 29 - Other Current Linbilities

13.26
38,10
49.31

101.07

2,480.29
25.28
6.23
30.13
2,541.91

6,259.65
18.35
171.80

331.82

6,d83.62

(Amount in T lakhs)

[

Particulurs

Asnt Mareh 31,2017

As nt Maorch 31, 2016 |

As at April 1, 2015 |

Withholding taxcs and others
Advance [rom cusiomers
S1nff Emolumenis Payable
Other Liabilities
TOTAL

Note 30 - Provisions

101.40
24771
19.09
80.01
d48.21

269.05
170.81
152.67
637,36

1,329.89

299.90
320,53
2329
801.06
163

(Amount in T lakhs)

L Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As ot March 31,2016

As at April 1,20(5 |

Prowision for Expeuses for Goods & services

Provision for Wealh Tax

Provision for Commission Expense
TOTAL

Noie 31- Employee Benefit Ohligntions
(Current)

574,04

574.04

3,759.70

3 759.70

6.850,74
0.02

§,850.76

{Amount in ? lakhs)

| Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As ot March 31, 2016

As at April 1, 2015 |

Provisien for Employecs’ benefits
TOTAL

MNote 32 - Current Tax Linbitites

7.80

7.80

727

7.27

(Amount in T lakhs)

[_ Particulars

As at March 31, 2017

As at March 31,2016 [

As at April 1, 2015 |

Provision for Taxation (net of tnxes paid}

TOTAL

2,635.01

2,635.01

e

642.66

642.66

5,504.69

5=m4.69




Vakrengee Limited

Notes Lo consolidated financia! stoiemenis for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 33 - Revenue lrom Operations

(Amount in T fakhs)

| Particulars

| For the year ended March 33,2017 |

For the yeor ended March 31,2016 |

{n) Income from e-governance activities, including Vakrangee
Kendrm

{b) Revenue from Sale of Products
- Sale of Logistics Kit
- Computer consumnables & periphersls

{c) Revenue from Sale of Services

- Information Technology-enabled Services (1TeS)
- Courier and Delivery Senvices

- Ohes

(d) Other Operating Revenues
- Scrap Sales

TOTAL

392,864.84 115,495.23
1004
41337 64 98
423 4] 64.98
6.076.79 351199
5218 -
619.65 -
6,748.62 351199
9.51 1.46
9.51 1.46
400,046.38 319,073.66

Notc:- The amount of revenues are exclusive of indirect taxes (service tax, value added tax, elc.)

Note 34 - Other Income

{Amount In T lakhs)

‘ Particulary

| For the year ended March 31,2017 |

For the year cnded March 31,2006 |

(i) Intereat Income on

- Bank Deposits 186,10 279 77
- Others 15.54 4.10
201 4 283.87
(ii) Other income
- Rent Received 1.50 1.50
- Sundry Balonces written back - .24
- Net gain on disposal of Property, plant and equipment 630.54 134,89
- Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange Fluctuation {Net) (355.21) 125 69
- Gainf(Loss) on sale of Investments {Net) 214 14 62
- Fair valee gain on financial insirument ol faic value through j288 -
Profit and loss
- Miscellaneous Income 14.84 2.20
326.69 28014
TOTAL 12833 564.01
Note 35 - Operating Expenses
{Amount In T lakhs)
| Particulary [ For the year ended March 31,2017 | For the year ended March 31,2016 |

Project Delivery Cost

- Opening Stock

- Add ; Purchase of goods and services
- Less : Closing Stock

Project Expenses
Commission Expenses
Printing Charges
Communication Costs
Conveyance & Travelling Expenses
Transporiation, Octroi and Loading / Unloading Charges
Rent, Rates and Taxes
TOTAL

Note 36 - Changes in Inventories

45,934.19 12,725.40
288.679.98 26181080
44,128.44 45934 19

200,485.73 228,602.01

2,279.98 901 86

5,500.02 293712

2286 24.80

25.64 721

67.34 42,63

1433 1.07

116.07 45.25

298,514.97 232,633.93

{Amount In T lakhs}

| Particulars

[ For the yenr ended Mareh 31,2017 |

For the year ended Mareh 3, 2016 |

(n} At the beginning of the period
{1) Work-in-Progress
{ii} Stock-in-Trade

Less : at the end of the period
{i} Work-in-Progress
(ii) Stock-in-Trade
TOTAL

Note 37 - Employee Benefits Expenses

4,258.32 3,145.17
51319 463.71
4,771.51 421088
4,785.70 4.258.32
1,004.74 513.19
5,790.44 4371.51
(1,018.93) {360.54)

{Amount In T lakhs)

(ni Particulars

| For the year ended March 31,2017 |

For ihe year ended Morch 31,2016 |

(1) Salaries & Wages

(11} Contribution 1o Provident & Other Funds
(iii} Shorc-based Payment Expenses

{iv) S1aff Welfare Expenses

TOTAL

{b] Detxited note on disclosure as required by Ind AS-19
For details, refer Notc No. 47

3,789.42
200.58
326.74

8L.93

439867

_—

4558.67

2,45000
94,87
(79.18)
66.91
2,532.60 etz
2,532.60 VRIS




Vakrangee Limiled

Notes Lo consofidated financial stalemenis for the year ended March 31, 2017

Note 38 - Finance Cosis

{Amgunt in T lakhs)

For the year ended March 31,2016 |

| Particulars For the year cnded March 31, 2017 L
Interest Expenses

- Banks 4,524 50 5318.71
« (hhers 147.29 4,671.89 150.16 5,468 87
Bank Chorges & Commission 337.32 162.81
TOTAL 5,009.21 5,631.68

Note 39 - Other Expenses
(Amount in T 1akhs)
Particulors ~ | For the vear ended Mareh 31,2017 | For the year ended March 31,2016 |

Repairs & Mainlenance ;
- Building
- Vehicle
- Onhers
Advertisement and Publicity Expenses
Business Promotion Expenses
Sponsorship Fres
Commission & Brokernge
Rent
Rates & Taxes
Insurance
Electricity Expenses
Printing and Stationery
Communication Costs
Fees & Subscriptions
Listing, Registrar & Share Issue/Transfer Expenses
Directors’ Remuneraiton
Directors' Sitting Fees
Legal & Professionsl Fees - Other than poyments to Auditor.
- Consultancy Charges
- Legal & Professional Fees
- Filing Stamp Duty and Franking Charges
- Regiswration charges
Payments to Auditors :
- Audit fees
- Tox Audid fees
- For Other Serviees
- For Reimbursement of Expenses
Conveyance & Trovelling
Vehiele Expenses
Corpornte Social Responsibility Expenditure {Refer Note 42)
OfTice & General Expenses
Allowance for credit losses
Miseellaneous Expenses
Preliminary Expenses written ofl’
TOTAL

Note 40 - Enrninga Per Equity Share

3906 51.64
368 1.98

2207 6481 3439 880l

342.09 244.30

257.32 86.78

108 0% 2874

1.71 0.65

4.19 -

24,65 6427

16.12 17.57

5302 44,29

3517 31553

162.12 11154

29.66 3248

39.26 5.04

21198 95.85

575 670
3135 7316
661.70 65114
19.81 14.22

0.27 713.13 0.75 739.27
37.29 22.27
823 4,15
6.72 5.55

- 52.24 0.20 3217

245.52 138 44

9.81 6.55

211.09 420.73

50.11 53.58

865.86 134,89

4097 522

6.09 -
3,550.67 2392.60

{Amount in T lakhs)

| Particulars

For the yeer ended March 31, 2017 |

For the year ended March 31, 2016 |

[} Net profit afler 1ax attributable 10 equity shareholders for
Basic EP3
Add/Less: Adjustment relaling to potential equity shares
Net profit nfter 1nx attributable to equity shareholders for
Diluted EPS

53,079.52

53,019.52

Weighted average no, of equity shares {in lakhs) outstanding during the

year:
For Basic EPS
For Diluied EPS

(e} Face Value per Equity Share (T)
Basic EP3(T)
Dilumed EPS (T)

5,292.10
5303.51

1.00
1003
1001

{d) Reconciliation between no. of shares {in lakhs) wsed for calculating bosie and diluted EPS

No, of shares used for caleulating Basie EPS
Add: Potentinl equity shares
No. of shares used for calculnting Diluted EPS

529210
11.41

530351

39,485.68

39,485 68

519825
530428

100
7.62
747

519825
106,00

530425




Vakmaget Limited
Noles to consolidated financia) statements as on March 31, 2017

Nate 41 - Contingent Linbitities and Commitmenis (1o the extenl nol provided for)
{Amount in T lakhs)

[ Pariicalars [ Asa March 31,2017 | Asnl March31,2006 | AsatApril 1, 2015 |

(A} Contingent Liabilities
(i) Claims against (he company nol acknowledged as debts 63.3¢ 1723 mnn
{ii} Company has provided Counter Gararanter in relation to Bank Guarantee 1,541 48 1,938 28 2,089.90

1o various parties which is not acknowledged in books of accounts - - -
{iiiy Disputed liabiliszes pertaining 10 Senvice Tax with CESTAT 156 19 - -
{iv) Dispuned liabifities periaining to Sales Tax with appeltate amhoritics 449.47 - -
{v) income Tax demand paid recovernble against appeal filed wath income Tax 409 81 190.1% -

ITAT and Commissioner of Income Tax {Appeals)

{A) 2,620.2% 2,155.86 2,117.13

{B) Commilments
(i} Estimazed amount of conlracts remairing to be executed on

capilal account not provided for (met of edvances) 63.23 - 15,00
{ii) Uncalled liabilities on share and other investments partly paid up - 10.00 10,00
(i) Subscription 1owards shares of whaolly-owned subsidiary - 100.00 -
(n) 61123 110 00 35.00
TOTAL({A~TY 2,683.43 2,265.36 152,13

Nele -
1. The amount of liabilities, which may oceur on levying ef penaliy and/or charges by clients For delays in execution ol contracts within the (ime preseribed in the agreement, is unascertained.

Note 42 - Corpornie Social Respomsibility

As per Section 135 of the Comparies Aci, 2013, & company, ing the applieabifity threshold, needs o spend i least 2% ol its pverage net profi for the immediately preceding three financial years on
corporate social responsibifity (CSR) activilies The areas for CSR aclivitics are eredication of hunger and malnutrition, promoting education, an end cullure, healthcare, destiiute care and cchabifitation,
environment susiainability, disaster reliel end rural development projects. A CSR commitiee has been formed by the Company as per the Act

Gross amount required to be spent by the company during the year is T 932 30 Iakhs
{Amount in T lakhs)

‘ Particulars | In Cash | Yel 1o be paid in Cash 1 Taotol ]
i) Construction / acquisition ol amy nsset - . -
1i) On purposes other than (i} above 211.09 - t1.0%

Note 43 - Disclosure on Specified Bank Notes (SBN1)

During the year, the Company had specified bank notes or other denomination note as defined in the MCA notification G.5 R, 3J03(E} dated March 31, 2617 on the deiails of Specified Bank Notey
(SBN) held and transacted during the period lrom November 8, 2016 10 December, 30 2016, the denomination wise SDNs and osher noles s per Lhe notification is given below:

{Amount in T lakhs)

Paniculars [ SBNs* [ Other denomination notes Total ]

Closing cash in hand as on November 8, 2016 062 01l 07
(+) Permitied receipis 038 13.65 1403
(-} Permited payments (0 38) (1109} {(1L47)
() Amount deposited in Banks (0.62) - {0.62)
Cloxing cath in hand as on December 3, 2016 - 2.67 2.67

* For the purposes of this clause, the term *Specified Bank Notes® shall have Lhe same meaning provided in the notifization ol Lhe Government of Indiz, in Lhe Ministry of Finance, Department of
Economic AlTairs number 5.0. 3407(E), duted the November 8, 2016

Note : The Company had obuained licence for operating White Label ATMs (WLAS) from the Reserve Bank of Tndia and is curcemly carrying ATM services in rurel, semi-urban and urban arcas in [ndia.
The Company had cash, both SBNs and cther denomination notes, as on the closing hours of Novernber 8, 2016 in the WLA ATMs operated by the Company. Therealler, the Compeny has earried cul
exertise of removing such SBN3 from (hose ATMs and depositing them inte the Company's specified bank accaunt. The toral amount of such specified bank notes depostied into bank by the Company is
T777.18 Iakhs This amount has not been included above as the SBN currency was not held as cash batance wilh the company during the period from November 8, 2016 to December 30, 2016

Note 44 - Money reetived ngninst Share warranis

The Companry had issued 250.00 lakhs lulty convestible wamants 1o M/s NID Capital Private Limited (formerly known as Vakrangee Capital Private Limiled) at 3 100/ per warran in February, 2014,
The warmants issued were convertible imo equal no. of equity shares having face value of T 1/~ with premium of ¥ 99/- per share Those warrants have been converted inlo 250 00 lakhs fully paid-up
equily shares of T 1/- each in August, 2015 i.e. before the expiry of 18 months lrom the date of aflotment of warmnts, These equity shares are subject 1o lock-in-period of three yesrs rom dece of
allotmem of the equity shares or such reduced period a5 may be permilted under ihe SEBI 1ssue of Cepilel & Disclosure Requirements (ICDR) Regulations, 2009 as amended time 1o time.




Vakeangee Limiled
Noles to consolidated financial siatemenis a3 on March 31, 2017
Notr 45 - Segment Reporting
The Group's activilies predominantly revolve around providing the e-governance relaled activites of Mission Mode Projects covered undes “National ¢-Governance Plan” (NeGP) Considering the nature

of Company’s business and operalions, there is only one reponeble seg {b and / or phical} in accordance with the requirements of the Indian Accounting Standard 108 - "Operaling
Segmens”. However. on Lhe basis of delivery modes. the Company’s business aperalions has been classified into 1wo business segments, viz. e-Governance Projects and Vakrangee Kendra

Revenue and identifiahle operating ¢xpenses in celation 10 Lthese segments are cazegorised based on items Lhat are individually identifisble 10 those stgments Certain expenses such as depreciation, which
form e significam mmpancn'l of toral expenses, are noi specifically allccable to specific segments a5 Ihe underlying assets nce used inierchangeably to wiilise the resources optimally. The management
believes thal it is not p | 10 provide segn discl relating to those costs and expenses, and accordingly these expenses are separaiely disclosed s ‘unattocated' and adjusied against the 1otal
income of the Cumpany. Fixed nsseis or liabilitizs contracied have not been identified to eny of the segments as the fixed asscis and services are used imerchangeably between segments Accordingly, no
disclosure relating to total segmens assets and habilities are made,

{Amount in t lakhs)

Particulam e—Gu\'e.mance Vakrangee Kendra Total
Projecis

Revenue from Opersatioos 142,213.87 15783150 400,046,358
{148,181.,02) (170,892.64) {319,073.66)

Segmental Results (Profil befort Deprecintion, Interest and Tax) 39.,430.98 55,170.02 94,601.00
{41,476 %9) {40,598.16) (82,075.15)

Less:

Depreciation 1338.72
{16,404.30)

Finance Costs £,009.21
(5.631.68)

Unallocsble expenses (net of unallocable income}) {528.33)
(-564,00)

Profit Belore Tax £2,781.40
{60,601.18)

Less : Tax Expense . 29,701.88
(21,117.50)

Profit Afier Taz 53,079.52
{39,485.68)

Note : Figures in brackets periains to previous year.

The company identifies operating segments based on the interal reporting provided to the chicf operating decision-maker. The chief operaling decision-maker, whao is responsible for allocating resources
and & perle of the opemting s, has been identified as the board of directors commiltee tha: makes sirazegic decisions

The accounting policies ndopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the company. Segmenl revenue, segment expenses, segment assets and segment liabilities have been
idenlified to segments on the basis of thair relationship to the operating activities of the segment
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Note 45 - Related Party Detnils

L]

b

Key Management Personnel
- Mannging Director & CRO
Mr. Dinesh Nandwana

Dr, Nishikant Hayainzgackar

Maneging Dircclor & Chief Executive Officer
{Chairman & Managing Direcior upie July 26, 2015)

Whote-Time Director

Mr. Romesh Fashi Director
M. Sunil Agarwal Director
Mr. Bnbulal Meena Duirecior
Mrs Sujata Chnnopadhyay Direcior

Director

Mr. Avinash Chendra Vyas
Mr. Thangavelu Sitharthan
Mr. Subbash Singhania
Ms Darshi Shah

Nominee Director

Chicf Finnncinl Officer (w.e.l. May | |, 2016)
Company Secretary and Compliance Qfficer

Relntive of key management personnel and Name of the enterprises having same key management personnel and/ or their selatives as the reponting enterprises with

whom the Company has entered into Iransaclions during the year

- NJD Lacteus & Honus Limited
(Formerly known os Yakrangee Lacitus & Honus Limited )
- N1D Capitnl Private Limited
(Formerly known os Yakrangee Capital Privaie Limiled)
- Yakrangee Technolegics Limited
- Mr. Manoj Nandwana
- Mr. Shelendra Nandwana
+ Ms Divyn Nandwnna (w.e.f Augusi 29, 2016}

Related Party Transaclions
= In relation to (a)

{Amaunt In T lakhs)

Nature of Transactions

For the vear ended March 31, 2017

For the vear ended March 31, 2014

Director Remuneration

- Dinesh Nandwana 171.25 66,15
- Dr. Nishikant Hayatnagarkar 40.74 29.30
Birectors’ Sitling Fees

- Ramesh Mulchand Joshi 1.00 1.20
- Sunit Agarwal 0.80 040
-~ Babulal Mcenn 1.00 1.38
- Sujawa Chaitopadhyay 2.00 150
- Avinnsh Chandra Yyas 095 030
~ Thangavelu Sithanhan . 0.42
Employee Benefif Expenses

- Subhash Singhania 26,57 -

- Darshi Shah 8.16 496
ESOP Perquisites

- Darshi Shah - 037
Balance outstanding 25 oa March 3 : NIL NIL

- In relation 10 (b)

{Amaount In 2 lakhs)

Nature of Transactions

For the year ended March 31, 2017

For the yenr ended March 31, 2016

Reimbursement of Expenses

- Mancj Nandwana (Expenses Payable)

- NJD Lacieus & Hortus Limited . 1.57
- Vakrangee Technologies Limited 793 15.72
- Mancj Nandwann 1.42 1.72
- Shelendrn Nandwana a.ll 1.53
Employee Benclit Expenses
- Manoj Nandwana 5.88 505
~ Shelendra Nandwnnn 442 4.65
- Divya Nandwana 5.73 -
Conversion of Warrants into Equity Shares
- NJD Capital Private Limited - 250,00
Balance ouistanding ms on March 31 :

0.36 0.15

Note : Corporate Guarantee given by Vakrangee Technologies Limited for working capital facilities availed by 1the Company :

- Guaraniee given to the extenl of value of property. situated ot Vakrangee House Bldg, No. 124, Marol Co-Op Indusirial Estale Ltd ., Marol, Andheri (E), Mumba:

(March 31, 2016 ; Corporatc guaraniee given for entire werking capital fucilities)
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Note 47 - Employee Benefit Obligalions

(i) Leave obligations
The lenve obligations cover the Company's liability for eamed leave

The amount of provision of T 162.25 Inkhs {March 31, 2016 - T 58 95 lakhs) is presenied ns current ond non-curent, since the Company doet not have an uncoaditional right Lo defer settlernent for ary of

these abligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employee to lake the full amount of eccrued lenve or require payment within the next 12 months,

{ii} Gratuity {post-cmptoyment benefits)

The Company provides for gratuity to employees in Indin as per the Payment of Gratuily Act, 1972, Employees who arc in continuous service for o period of 5 years are eligible for gratuity. The amount of
gretuity payable on retirement/termination is the employees last drawn basic salary per month computed proporiionalely for 15 days salary multiplied for the number of years of service. The gratuity planis a
funded plen end the Company makes contributions to recognised/npproved funds in India The Company does nof fully fund the liability and mainlains a target level of funding 1o be maintained over a period

of lime based on estimations of expecled gratuity payments.

(iii} Defined contribulion plans

The Company also has ceratin defined benefit obligations. Contributions are made 1o providem fud in [ndin for employees ot the specified rote of basic salary as per regulations. The contribulions are madc to
regisiered provident fund administered by the government The obligations of the Company is limited to the nmount contributed and it has no further contractual nor any constructive obligation The expense

recognised during the period towards defined contribution plan is T 134,78 lakhs (Morch 31, 2416 - T 105.63 Iakhs).

Gratuily

The following table sels out the amount recognised in the balance sheel and the movements in1he net defined benefil obligntions over the year are as follows

{Amount in ¢ lakhs}

Particulars

Present value of

Fair value of Plan

Net amount

Monality Table

abligation Assels
01-Apr-15 118.62 (67.41) £1.20
Current Service cost 41.38 - 4138
Interest expense/{income) 0.4% (4.12} 5.37
Total amount recognised in profil or loss 50.87 {4.12) 46.75
Renteasurements
Experience (gains)losses (8.53) - (8.59)
Tolal amount recognised in other comprehensive income {8.53) - (.53
Employer contributions - . -
Bentfit payments (£5.52) 15.52 -
31-Mar-16 145.44 {56.02} 89.42
{Amount In T lakhs)
Particutars Pruer_il VI:I'LI! of Fair value of Plan Net nmount
obligniion nssets
01-Apr-16 14544 {56.02) 89.41
Current Service cost 60.29 - 60,29
Interest expensef{income) 10.91 {4.20) 671
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 71.20 {4.20} 67,00
Remeasurements
Retumn on plen pssels, excluding emounts included in intcrest - (9.2%) {0.25)
(Gain)loss from change in financial assumptions 918 - 9,38
Experience (gains)losses {271.38) - (27.38)
Total nmount recogpised in other comprehensive income {18.00} {0.25) (18.25)
Employes contributions - - .
Benefit payments (b 05) 145 -
31-Mar-17 197,59 {59.43) 138.16
The ncl linbility disclosed sbove relates to funded plans ore o5 follows
{Amount in T lakhs)
Particulars 31-Mar-17 31-Mnr-16 [ 01-Apr-i5
Present valuc of funded obligations 197.59 145.44 118.62
Fair value of plan assets (59.43) {56.02) (67 42)
Deficit/{Surplus) of gralvity plan 138.16 8$9.42 £1.20
Significant estimales- actuarinl assumptions and sensitivity
The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 0l-Apr-15
Discount rate 1.50% 8 00% 8.00%
Salary growth eate (per annum) 5.00% 5.00% 500%
Withdrawal rate (per annum) 2.00% 2,00% 2.00%
Expected rate of retumn 1.50% §00% 8.00%

1ALM 2006-08 Ultimate 1ALM 2006-08 Ultimate [ALM 2006-08 Ultimate

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is*

Change in asyumption

Impact on defined henefit obligaiion

Particulars Incresse in assumption

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Discount rate 1% 1% Diecrense by 13% 12%
Salary growth rate 1% 1% Inerense by 16% 14%
Withdrawai rate 1% 1% Increase by Y %

. ) Impnel on delined benefit oblipation

Particulars Changt in assumption : Decrease if;ssumplinn

31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 31-Mar-17 M-Mar-16
Discount rote 1% 1% [nercase by 16% 14%
Salary growth rate 1% 1% Decrease by 13% 12%
Withdrawal reie 1% 1% Decrense by A% 5%

The above sensitivity analyses nre based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant In pracsice, Lhis is unlikely 1o oceur, and changes in some of the masumptions may be
correloted. When ealeutating the sensitiviteaf the defined benelfit obligation 10 significum acluarial assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefil obligation caleulated with the projected
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The methods and types of assumptians used in preparing the sensitiviry analysis did not change compared Lo the prior peried,

*The major calegories of plans assels are as follows :

1n Perceniape %
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Equity instruments 7.71 8.91
Debt instruments £9.43 85.81
Govemment bonds 631 54,63
Caorporate bonds‘debentures 2613 3118
Asset backed seeurities 0.03 0.04
Cash and cash equivalents 2.83 524
Toial 100.00 100.00

"The Company contributes oll the ascertained linbilitics towards gratuity to Life Insurnnce Corporstion of India (LIC) which is the insurer- managed fund. Since the invesiments in the plan assets is mannged
by LIC the dessiled breakup of the investmenls is not made nvailoble 10 the Company,

Risk Exposure

Through i1 defined bencfil plang, the Company is ¢xposed 1o 8 number of risks, the mesi sigmficani of which are detailed

Investment risk

The present value of defized benefiz plan hability is caleulated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to market yields

P P Y 13 ¥y y

at the end of the reporting period on govemment bonds, Mot of the plan esset investment is in fixed income securities with high
grades and in govemnment securites which are subject 1o interest rate risk. A portion of the funds are invested in equity securities. The

Interest risk«

A deerease in the market yeilds in the governmem bond will increase the plan lability, however, this will be partially offsct by an
increase in the return on the plan's debl invesiments.

Longevity risk

panticipants will increase the plan's hability.

The present vatue of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is determined by reference to the best
estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and efter ¢émploymeni, An increase in the life expeciancy of the plan

Salary risk

The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calcutated using n discount mte which is determined by reference to the future
salaries of plan partictpants As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants witl increase the plan's linbility

Maturitly profite of grainity lishilily and Employer contribution

Expected contributions to posi-employment benefit plans for the year ending March 31, 2048 are T 81,32 lakhs (as at March 31, 2017 : T 57.86 lakhs),

The weighted average durmiion (based on discounred cash flows) of the defined benefil oblignion is 21 years (2016- 20 years), The expecied malurity anatysis of undiscounted graiity is as follows :

Prniculars Amount in T Inkhs
Less thon one year 5.00
Between 1-2 years 4.64
Between 2-3 years 31.52
Grver 5 years 255.19
Total 302.35

Note 48 - Share based payments

The company has formulated Employee Siock Option Scheme, 2008 {ESOP Scheme) which was approved by the members/shareholders of the Company at their annual general meeting held on 23
Septernber, 2008, s modified on 10 January, 2011 and 1 June, 2002 annual report general meeting. Further the company has formulated the new “ESOP Scheme 2414" approved by the members of 1he
company through postal ballot on 23rd hMay, 2014, The Employee Option Plan is designed 1o provide incentives 1o all the existing employees serving with the Company. Under the plan, employres arc
granted options which vest proportionniely from 2 — 6 years from the grant date which includes lock in peried

Once vested, the options remain exercisable for a period of 4 years

Options are granted under the plan for no consideration and earry no dividend or voting rights When exercisable, each oplion is convertible into one equity share. The exercise price of the options s a
prite which is detcrmined a1 50% of markel price of the serip of the company (en the highest raded Stock Exchaage) or at aay other price ns decided by the Nomination nnd Remuneration and

Compensetion Commiitee.

Set ot below is & summary of options gramied under the plan:

I-Mar-17 31-Mar-16
Particulary Average exercise price , . Average exercise price Number of
R Numbher of options . N
per share option (T} per share option (¥) opliony
Opening balance 90.09 20,48,530 37.55 3446260
Granted during the year - - 113,00 9.67.200]
Exercised duting the year 243.95 35,250.00 108 06 7.13,930
Forfeited during the year 95.01 4,49 505 1529 16,501,000
Expired during the year - - E .
Closing Balance 90.29 15,62,775 90.09| 10,48,530
Vested and excercisable 110.77 6,98 375 37,69 201,625
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The weighted average share price at Lhe dale of exercise of opticas cxercised during the year ended Mnrch 31, 2017 was ¥ 243,95 (March 11, 2016 : ¥ 108.06).
No options expired during 1he periods in the above tables,

Shnre options outstanding ot the end of the year have the following expiry dote nnd excrcise prices:!

Grant date Expiry date Exercise price (¥) Share optioas Share options | Share oplions
31-Mar-17 31-Mar-16 Ot-Apr-15
30-07-2009 29-07-2016| 61.90 - 97 020 106,020,
30-12-2009 29-12-2016 67.85 - - -
18-05-2010 17-05.2017 146.50 - 100,000 100,000
24-11-2010 23-11-2017 150.00 - - -
12-08-2011 11-08-2018 150.00 - 18,660 171,340
20-07-2012 19-07-2021 20,00 27,875 59,250 145,000
20-07-2012 19-07-2021 1000 - - 2,000,000
26-11-2014 26-11-2023 64.70 682,400 821,100 215,900
11-03-2016 10-03-2025 113.08 852,500 942 500 -
Total 1,562,775 1,048,530 3,446,260

Fair value of options granted

The fair value at grant daie of oplions granted during the yenr ended March 31, 2017 was NIL per optton (March 31, 2016 : 3 152.51) The fair value 81 grant date is determined using the Black Scholes
Mode! which takes into secount the exercise price, the 1erm of the option, the share price at grant dai¢ and expected price volntility ol Lhe underlying sharc, the expecied dividend yield ond the risk free
interest rate for the 1erm of the aption.

The mode! inputs for oplions granied during the year ended March 31, 2017 included,

n) Oplions are granted for no considerntion and vesl upan completion of senvice for a period of (wo years Vesied oplions ace excrcisable for 4 period of 1wo years after vesting
) Exercise price : ¥ NIL (March 31, 2016 - T113.08)

¢) Grant date  : NIL (March 31, 2016 - March | 1, 2016)

d) Expiry date  : NIL {March 31, 2016 ~ March 10, 2015)

) Share price at gront dnte ; ¥ NIL {March 3], 2006 - ¥ 224.50)

) Expected price volatility of the company's shares : NIL (Mnrch 31, 2016 - 42 50%)

) Expected dividend yield : NIL (March 31, 2016 - 0.40%)

h) Risk free inierest rate  : NIL (March 31, 2016 — 7.60%)

The expetted price volatility is based on the historic volntility {based on the remaining life of the options), adjusied for nny expecied changes to future volaiility due 1o publicly available information.
b) Expense arising from share based payment transactions

Total expenscs orising [fom share based payment tronsnctions recognized in profil or loss as part of employee benefil ¢xpense were s follows:

{Amount in T lakhs)
Mnrch 31,2016 |

9.18)|

Mnarch31, 2017 |
32674 |

IPnﬂi:uhrs |
|Emplnyee Qption Plan

Nnie 49 - Financinl Risk Manngement

The Company’s activilice expose it 10 market risk, liquidity risk ond credit risk, The below nole explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages the risk :

Exposure arising fron wesin skl e s 1 r—

[R5 b MR ) H T

SHSTRNEES T Measurement ImREERrinmg

AR Management EETERTi

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, derivative financial

Credit Risk

Aging anolysis

Diversificatzon of bank deposits,

instruments, fi

ia assels

d at amonised cost.

Credit ratings

credit limits and letters of credit

Barrowings and other liabilities

Liquidity Risk Rolling cash flow forecasts

Avpilibility of committed credit
lines and borrowing facilities

Future commercial transactions. Recogniscd finonzial assets and
linbilities not denominated in Indian Rupee (TNR)

Market Risk - foreign Cash flow forecasting

Forwarded foreign exchange

Long-Term borrowings at variable rates

exchange Sensitivity analvsis contmcls
Market Risk - interest Sensitivity nnalysis Interest role swaps
rale

[nvestments in equily securities

Market Risk - securily
prices

Sensitivity analysis

Portfolic diversification
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Naole 50 - Income Toxes

(n) A reconcilintion of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the income before income laxes is summarized below:
{Amount in T lakhs)

[ Paniculars | For ihe year ended March 31, 2017 | For the year ended Mnrch 31, 2016 |
Profit before income laxes £2.781.40 60,603.18
Enacted tax rates in India 14 61% 1a61%
Compuned expected tax expense 28,648.99 2097).55
Effect of non-deductible expenscs 1,293,26 271.01
Absorbtion of unabsorbed brought forward losses and depreciation (240.05) (127.06)
Others @an -
Incomr Taas expense 29,701.59 21.117.50

{b) The following table provides the details of incame fax liabilities and income tax assets as of March 31, 2017, March 31, 2016 and April |, 2015

{4
Pariicolars | As al March 31,2017 [ Ax nt March 31, 2016 | As st April 1, 2015

Current Income Tax Liabilities 2,615.01 642,66 5.504.69
Income Tax Assets BOG6 42 476.04 25039
Nel current income (nx liahilities / (nssets) al the end 1,818.50 166.62 5.154.30

The gross movement in the current income ax habiliry / (nsset) for the year ended Mnrch 30, 2017 and March 31, 2016 15 as follows.
{Amount In € [akhs)

Particulars | For the year ended Mnrch 31, 2007 | For the yenr ended Mnrch 31, 2016 ]
Nel curreni income 1n1 finhility / {nssel) at the heginning 166.62 5,254.30
Income Tax paid {29,449 56) (29,217.21)
Current Income Tax cxpense 31.111.63 24,129.53
Net current income Ina linbility / (r3sei) at the end 1.828.59 166.62

{c) The gross movement inthe deferred income tax account for the year ended March 31, 2017 snd March 31, 2016, are as follows:

{
‘ Panticulars | For the yenr ended Mnrch 31, 2017 For the yenr ended Mnrch 31, 2016

Net deferred income tax binhilily nt the beginning 1,299.52 4,276.38
Movements relating to lemporary differences (1.200 71} (295741}
Temporary differences on other comprehensive income (3.81) (19.95)
Net deferred income tax linbility at the end 0,00 1,299.51

The timing differences arising ns ot year-end ere deferred tax assets There are no items for which there is deferred tax linbility s nt year-cnd. Hence, on the basis of reasonnble cerainty, such deferred
1ax assets have no1 been recognised and carried forward.

Note 51 - Previous year / period figures

The financiol statements have been prepared in accordance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other
recognised accounling practices and polices to the extent applicable. The Company has adopied Ind AS on April 1, 2016 with the transition date as April |, 2015, and adoption was carried out in
necardance with Ind-AS 0L - First time adoption of [ndian Accounting Standards The previous period's ligures have been regrouped or rearranged wherever neecssary.
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